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Chairman'’s statement

As Chairman of InfraStrata 1 am acutely
aware that the year to 31 July 2010 has
brought 1ts faur share of frustrabhon and
disappomtment {¢ our hopes and
aspirahons for the Group as reflected in
a distressed share price performance
However I am very pleased to report
that progress 1s now being made to
move the business forward

It has become a truism to say that the
appetite for investment in gas sterage
within the short to medium term has
detenorated considerably 1n recent
years and this has had a significanily
adverse effect upon our abhihity to fund
our portfolio of projects In
consequence we have decided durnng
the course of the last year, to expand
our sphere of interest based upon our
exishng assets and areas of executive
experhse where we have found there to
be natural synergies In this respect we
have sought to lessen our total
dependency upon developing gas
storage projects across an internahonal
portfolio to one of broadening our
range of assets within two core areas in
the UK, to include convenhonal and
unconventional 01l and gas explorahon

In the year to 31 July 2010 our
disappoiwntment centred upon the
ongomng difficulhes within the capital
and gas storage markets As you will
know, a Co-operation Group of potenhal
investors had been fermed 1n October
2009 following which an advisor was
appomted to undertake a techmceal
due-diligence exercise This process
continued in paratiel with discussions
on possible shareholder and capacity
agreements co-ordinated by our legal
advisors Regrettably, whilst our view of
the project in both technmcal and
financial terms remains undiminished
the Co-operation Group acting as a
whole were unable to offer commercial
terms that were acceptable to us at thes
bme However during this ime we were
able to make considerable progress
through our discussicns with eCORP
internatonal, LLC ("eCORP?) culminahng
1n a partnership agreement that not
only faciitates substantal progress in
the project but also enables our
potenhal participation 1n explorahon
achwity i the area We hope that the
Portland Project will be brought back to

the market 1n 2012 when we anticipate
an improvement to the situahon m the
markets

in addition to our conbnuing efforts
directed at bringing the Portland
project to full developmental stage we
have been pursuing our plan to secure
planning permission for the project at
Islandmagee in Northern Irelond On 23
March 2010 Islandmageee Storage
Limited on behalf of the Group.
submitted a planning application
relating to the creahon of a 500 million
cubic metres natural gas storage facihity
- a capacity sufficient to stere Northern
Ireland s peak demand for 1n excess of
40 days We are conhnuing in our
discussions with eCORP as potential
parmer 1n this enterprise but on a non
exclusive basis as we seek interest from
other parhes in not only progressing the
gas storage project but again
broadening our sthategy to include
exploration

Slhim differentials between summer and
winter gas prices continue to affect
sentiment for large gas storage
developments but the recuirement for
such long-lead infrastructure remains
strong This posihon was echoed and
reinforced through several of the
presentations made duning the highly
successful independent seminar on gas
storage hosted by InfraStrata in
September We therefore remain
focused upon the development of the
two gas storage projects within the UK
that could between them provide over
10% of the total UK and Ireland peak
daly demand once operatonal in the
latter part of the decade However
mindful of the difficulhes 1n obtaining
funding nterest for the full development
of such projects at this stage we have
sought with some success, to expand
our interest into more trachttonal ol and
gas explorahon which we hope will
bring considerable benefit by
enhancing shareholder value

Your Board has considered the mater
of remuneration for the executive team
and our decision has been {o again
freeze salanes for the coming year but
consider a reward through the share
in¢entive scheme for milestones
achieved Thius decision 1s based

InfraStrata plc

primarnly upon the current economic
situation and financial cutlock and in
no way reflects adversely upon the
performance of the team which remains
one of total dedicaton and diligence

In cenclusion I would hike to express my
gratitude for your contnued
encouragement and support durning
diffrcult econormic hmes and offer my
appreciation for the conhinuing efforts
of the execuhve team on your behalf

Ken Ratchit
Non-Execuhve Chairman




Chief Executive’s
operating review

Portland Project, Dorset

At a projected 1000 million cubic metres
('mcm”) of working gas the facihity would
be the largest of the publicly announced
onshore gas storage facthttes m the UK
The project is owned by Porfland Gas
Limuted. Its two shareholders are o
subsicdicary of eCORP Internatonal LLC, a
developer operator and owner of natural
gas storage facihhes and o developer
and explorer of conventional and
unconvenhonal natural gas prospects in
the US and Internationally (50% interest)
and a wholly owned subsichary of
InfraStrata plc (50% interest)

The project has been granted plemning
permission by Dorset County Council and
Pipeline Construchon Authonsation by the
Department of Energy and Climate
Change The gas storage faciity 15
designed to mject or wathdraw gas at
20mem per day The total construchon cost
for the project 1s approsamately £450m

Further informaton 15 available on the
website wwwportland-gascom.

In October 2010 the Company

cnnounced that legal agreements had
been completed with US independent
energy company eCORP Internatonal

LLC ("eCORP") relahng to InfraStrata s
interests in the Portland gos storage project

A subsidicry of eCORP, @CORP O1l & Gas
UK Limited. acquured nghts to 50% of the
share capital of the project company,
Portland Gas Limited in retumn for
matching the project expenditure
invested to date by InfraStrata (£229m)
The Compemy through its subsidiary
InfraStrata UK Limited will retaan 50% of
the share capital in Porfland Gas Limited.

These funds will be used to develop the
Portland Project further before bringing it
to market, hopefully during 2012 Under
the terms of the agreement with eCORP
the dnlling of the first cavern well dunng
2011 will be the mihal activity Data wall
be acquired to better define the pressure
ranges over which the caverns can be
operated to maxamise the responsiveness
of the caverns to short term gos demand
requirements (the ‘extnnsic value of the
preojech and finalise elements of the
cavern design InfraStrata will also
beneft from an income stream through a
technical services agreement.

The Company is pleased to be moving
nte a new phase 1n the development of
the Company with the partnership
During 2011 we lock forwerd to
progressing plans with stakeholders to
move the Porlland Project forward and
expect the major work on the ground to
start with construchon of the wellpad
during Q2 2011

Islandmagee Project,
Northern Ireland

The proposed 500 million cubic metres
{"mcm”) facility would be the largest on
the 1sland of Ireland and the first for
Northern Ireland It would make ¢
signiicant contributton to the secunty of
gas supplies. The facuity 15 being
designed to mject gas at 12 mcem and
withdraw gas at 22 mcm per day The
cost of constructon has been eshmated
at £250 million, ncluding cushion gos
The project is owned by landmagee
Storage Limited (TMSL"), an independent
Northemn lreland registered company Its
two shareholders are a subsidiary of
Mutual Energy an operator of exishng
key gas and electncal nfrastructure m
Northern [reland (35% wmnterest) and a
subsidiary of InfraStrata plc (65% interest)
A planmng apphcation for the
Elandmagee Storage Project was
submuitted in March 2010 The subrmussion
of the planning application followed
more than two years collahng
informaton and carrying out very
thorough inveshgative studies into the
development of a natural gas storage
faciity withun a Permian salt sequence a
mile beneath Larne Lough, including a
3D seismuc survey cearied out in 2007
Since then IMSL has been consulting
extensively with stakeholders and loccl
restdent groups and held two well
attended public extubihons during 2009




Further information 1s available on the
project website
wwwislandmageestorage com.

In June 2010 the Company announced
that it had signed a Memorandum of
Understanding {MOU") with eCORP
relabng to a proposed mvestment in the
Islandmagee Project eCORP the
Company and its partner Mutual Energy
agreed 1 November 2010 to extend the
terms of the MOU untl 30 Apnl 2011 but
on a non-exclusive basis

Under the MOU end subject to
agreement, @CORP retauns an ophon to
acqurre an mnterest in the project
company Islandmagee Storage Limited
on terms specified i the MOU  Should
eCORP proceed with an investment in
IMSL. eCORP would acquire 40% of the
share capital of IMSL i return for
funding the project through to the
F:anancial Investment Decision point and
paying InfraStrata cmd Mutual Energy a
sum of up to £5m if the project proceeds
to development In addihon, eCORP
would refund all of the project
development costs incurred by IMSL to
the date of completion (these have been
funded solely by InfraStrata) InfraStrata
and Mutual Energy remain comntted to
mtoducing a further partner into the
project and wall be explonng the potental
for joint development with eCORP and
others over the coming months.

The Islandmagee Storage Project 1s an
mnportant element of InfraStratas
portiolio and the Company remains
hopeful that this strategic asset for
Northem Ireland will be granted
planning permussion 1n the first half of
2011 to enable dnlling of the fust cavern
well to commence before the end of 2011
Front End Engmeenng Design will
commence following acqusthon of data
from the well leading to the point when
the decision to proceed to full
construchon 15 expected to be taken
dunng 2012

New projects

Durnng 2010 the Company took the
decision to focus its resources on the UK
gas market, and to enhance the exising
gas storage business within its two core
areas This includes conventonal and
uncenvenhonal petroleum exploration,
where the Company can use its exising
geclogical and geophysical knowledge
and databases to leverage hal funding
for the projects. The Company sees an
excellent strategic fit between gas pro-
duction and storage 1n close proxumty to
each other

In November 2010 the Company was
offered a petroleum explorabhon icence
over the central part of the Larne-Lough
Neagh Basin in Northern Irelemd The
offer s i response to o apphcation
made to the Department of Enterprise,

Trade and Investrent {(DETIY) 1n Neorthern
Ireland in August 2010 The Company
expects that DETI should be mn a pos-
ton to 1ssue the licence 1n Q1 201t after 1t
has completed the drathng of the termns
and conchtions of the heence, taking

nte account the outcome of 1ts consulta-
ton with other Departments and agen-
ctes The mnital licence term will be five
years with a decision on dnlhing a well
required withun two years. InfraStrerta wall
be the operator of the licence with a 50%
interest. The hicence covers an areq of
663 square klometres and the exishng Is-
landmagee gas storage project 1s located
within the boundary

Following a licence award, seisimuc data
would be acquired during 2011 and it

15 hoped that interpretation of thus data
would lead te cn explorchon well being
dnlled wathin two yecas. Ideally such a
well could form part of a prograrnme

to include dnlling for the Islandmagee
gas storage project whete the Com-
pany holds a 65% interest, subject to the
granhng of plcnning permussion for that
project

In respense to the decision o focus ifs
resources on 1ts UK projects the Com-
pany decided to seek a buyer for iy
entire mterests 1n the gas storage projects
i Span and Germany which are both at
the explorahon apphcaton stage




Corporate and social responsibility

Porland Gas Limited continues to
support local commumtbes 10 is crea of
operation

The Portland Gas Trust

The Portland Gas Trust is a regustered
chanty thet supports mitiahves around
education, geology and the
enviuonment This year the Trust has
conhnued to support local projects both
financially, and i kind through the
services of Comrnunity Liaison Officer
Rachel Barton. The Governor's Garden
project recerved over £45000 from the
Big Lottery fund and the Trust remains a
partner tn delivening the overall scheme
inclucing a betanical garden, wildhfe
garden and allotments.

The Trust has continued to support the
Island Ranger post and 15 a key partner
in the Wild about Weymouth and
Portland project that received Access to
Nature funding to deliver a range of
environmental projects across the area
over the next few years

The Trust spenscred the Budmouth
College Geology Awurd and the
Portland MEMO project. The Board
agreed to support the Portiand Museum
Trust by offering stalf time 1n advising

and accessing grants. This led to grants
bemng received by the Museum Trust for
repairs to the bulding and IT
technology for over £11000 Other
lgrger grant pregrammes are also
beaing explored

The Trust has contnued to work on the
0ld Engine Shed and the areas around
the bullding The Trust received a grant
of £4,000 from the COMMA fund which
enabled work to be done on site This
has included rebullding the dry stone
walls with velunteers from the
community and the YOI, clearnng scrub
and the produchon of information
panels that have been set in larges
pieces of Portland Roach stone Local
stone company Albicn Stone donated
two preces of stone which have been
carved with poetry by the late Skylark
Durston and placed withun sechons of
the walling The Trust 1s committed to
sustainable energtes being used on the
Shed once the rencovabhon works start
and after recernng a grant of £4.125
from CSEP commussioned a feasibility
study of the types of energy saving
1deas that could be used Future plans
mclude hoving acuvities for the local
commurnity at the Old Engine site in 2012
to celebrate the &ueens Diamond
Jubilee and the 2012 Clympic Games

InfraStrata plc

Islandmagee |

Islondmagee Storage Lirmted strongly '
beheves 1n supporting the local
commuity Subject to obtamng |
planning perrmuission and full project |
funding the Compemy intends to set up

a Trust with objectives around |
education, geology and the

environment An inihal investment of €1

million over three years, with o further

£50 000 per annum for a mimmum of

six years thereafter 15 planned

Consultabon with local residents and

interest groups indicated that there is a

naeed to upgrade the community centra

islandmagee Storage Limited has

agread to assist with this as part of its

pnmary investment phase which 1n turn

will help with the development of the

Gobbins tourlsm project sponsored by

Larne Borough Council

The company 1s talking to local

residents and communty groups in the

Larne Lough area with regard to 1deas

and mtichves which could be funded

through the proposed Trust In June

2010 local businesswoman Judith Tweed

was appomnted as Community Liaison

Consultant, in order to collate a wide

range of 1deas for potenticl funding
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Report of the Directors
for the year ended 31 July 2010

The Duectors have pleasure in
presentng their report and audited
financial statements for the year ended
31 July 2010

Principal activity and
review of business

The principal actiity of the Group
throughout the year was the
development of sub-surface gas storage
facibities

General

InfraStrata plc is mncorporated 1n and
domiciled 1in England and Wales The
Company changed 1ts name from
Portland Gas plc to InfraStrata plc on
the 15 December 2009

Share capital

On the 15 September 2009 the
Company 1ssued 919 474 new ordinary
shares of 10 pence each which were
classified as shares to be 1ssued at 31
July 2009

On the 5 November 2009 the Company
placed 2500 000 new ordinary shares of
10 pence each at 100 pence per share
to raise £2,500,000 before expenses

Business review

Dunng the year the Group continued to
develop 1ts gas stoerage business

Portland Project

At g projected 1000 milhon cubic
metres of working gas stored in 14
caverns at a depth of 2,400 meters
within Triassic salt the faciity would be
the largest of the publically announced
onshore gas storage facilihes in the UK
The project has been granted plannng
permussion by Dorset County Council
and Pipeline Construchon Authorisahon
by the Department of Energy and
Clhmate Change The gas storage
facility 15 designed to tyect or withdraw
gas at 20mem per day The current
eshimate of total construchon cost tor
the project 15 approximately £450m The
project will use brine compensation
technology and will not require cushion
gas Progress was made dunng the year
completng land leases for the 37
kilometre gas pipeline connection to
the National Transmssion System

A Co-operation Group was established

following a successful first phase of the
funding process duning the pnor year
The Group consisted of ive companies
each of which had expressed an
interest i possibly acquinng a working
interest 1n the Portland Project, together
with InfraStrata UK Limited The Group
worked together to conduct a feasibility
study 1n respect of the Project during
the year The Projects finance advisor
BNP Partbas and the Compeomny
progressed discussions with the
European Investment Bank on
development of the financing structure
and securing debt financing The EIB
technical advisers have completed the
fust phase of the project inance due
dihgence The Co-Operation Group
was terminated on 28 June 2010 On the
same day a Memorandum of
Understanding was signed with eCORP
Internahonal LLC through which eCORP
could acquire 50% of the Project by
funding the next stage of investment.
The related legal agreements were
completed on 1 Qctober 2010

The trubal works on the wellpad area
were undertaken durnng the year
Further works are expected to be
undertaken 1n quarter 2 of the 2011
calendar year in préparabon for the
driling of the first cavern well later in
2011 These works will be funded by
eCORP

The gas storage facihties will be
constructed 1n a number of stages
starbng 1mbally with dniling and
construchon of the faciibes required to
create the caverns followed by
construction of the gas facilihes and
pipelines The project will take
agpproximately eaght years to construct

Islandmagee Project

The Planming Application for the
Islandmagee Storage Project was
submitted to the Strategic Projects Unat
of the Northemn Ireland Plannng
Service during March 2010

The proposed storage facility 15
designed to store 500 million cubic
metres of natural gas 1n seven caverns
to be created at a depth of 1500 metres
within a Permuan salt sequence The site
15 located close to exishng gas
mfrastructure and i what the Company
believe 1s the thickest development of
salt in Northern Ireland at Ballylumford

InfraStrata plc

on Islandmagee, County Antnm The
project will take approximately seven
years to construct

In January 2010 InfraStrata UK Limited
Movyle Enetgy Investments Limited (a
wholly owned subsidiary of Mutual
Energy) and Islandmagee Storage
Limited entered into a preliminary
sharehotders agreement whereby
Moyle Energy Investments Limited
acquired a 35% interest in Islandmagee
Storage Limited InfraStrata UK Limited !
continues to assume one hundred
percent of the nsks of ownership and
therefore InfraStrata ple includes the
total assets and liabihhes of
Islandrmagee Storage Limited n its
consolidated results

On 28 June 20i0 a Memorandum of
Understanding was signed with eCORP
Internatbonal LLC through which eCORP
could acquire 40% of the Project by
funding the next stage of mvestment,
refunding back-costs and paying a
bonus at the Final Investment Decision
point Discussions are conhnuing on the
Islandmagee Storage Project, and
eCORP the Company and its partner
Mutual Energy have agreed to extend
the terms of the MOU untl 30 Apnl 2011,
but on a non-exclusive basis

Storage asset portfolio
development

The Group made progress with its plans
for new gas storage projects in Germany
and Spamn In Germany a review of the
geology and infrastructure has resulted
in activity being focused on a salt dome
n northern Germany An application for
an explorabon kcence over a salt dome
wuas made i 2010 by the German
subsichary Sager Meer Energy Limited

In Spaun, the Group awated the results
of an expleraben applicahon lodged by
a local subsiciary Portlond Gas ESP SL
n 2008

Following a strategic review the

Company has decided te sell its enhre

interests i these gas storage projects

which are currently both at the

exploraton application stage, to fecus

on its core areas 1 the Urnuted Kingdom.

Discussions are being held with eCORP |
and others with view to concluding a

sale dunng 2011




Health, safety and
environment

There were no reportable health safety
or environmentdal incidents dunng the
penod

Key performance indicators

Key performance indicators are used
by the Board to monitor progress
agamst predeterrmned objectives.

Key performance indicaters include
identification of new econemic project
opportumbes submission of project
planmng apphecabons in accordance
with project scheduling, project
development 1n accordance with
project development programme and
Group working camtal management.

Subrmission of the Islandmagee project
planning applicahon dunng 2010 the
further development of the Portland
project and prudent apphicabon of
available cash resources are n line
with the Board's expectahon

Risk factors

The Group has to manage several
business nisks These risks mclude loss of
key employees, delays on planrng
applications, funding, cost over runs
and exploraton fatlures. The Board
conducts a review of the specific risks
the Group faces and has appropnate
systems i place 1n order to 1dentfy
and manage n so far as possible the
ongomng risks and uncertamnhes the
Group faces

Outlook

The 2010/11 financial year will again be
an active ime for the business

The Group leoks forward {o progressing
the Portland Project with eCORP The
focus will be the drilling of the furst
cavern beorehole

Islandmagee Storage Limited looks

forward to the Planmng Application
determination which s anbeipated

dunng the financial year

In additon the Group will continue 1n
its stated objective of developing the UK
gas storage business by working in
partnerships across all of our projects
The Group are alse making
apphcations for petroleum licences

where they believe synergies exist
between exishng projects and the
licence areas apphed for

Results and dividends

The Group made a loss after tax of

£1 248 461 dunng the year (2009 loss
after tax of €1 281 002) The loss for the
year together with the balance of

£3 241 347 brought forward leaves a
retained loss of £4 489,808 to be camed
forward

The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2009 Smul)

In accordance with internatonal
financial reporhing standards, the
project assels have been reclassified as
assets held for sale and disclosed as
such 1n the consolidated statement of
financial posihon As a corollary the net
loss atinbutable to the project
comparnies has been classified as
ansing from discontinued operahons in
the statement of comprehensive mcome

Events since the balance
sheet date

On the 1 October 2010 eCORP O1l & Gas
UK Limited undertook to fund the first
cavern well and thereby acquired the
nght to match the project expenditure
invested to date by InfraStrata (£22 9m)
in retwrn for 50% of the share capital of
the project company Portland Gas
Limted

The Department of Enterprise Trade &
Investrment {DETI") has carried out its
assessments of the inancial and
technical aspects of an applhcahon
made for a petroleum hicence In
Northern Ireland and offered 1in
November 2010 to grant InfraStrata a
50% hicence interest over the area
applied for which is known as Cenfral
Larne - Lough Neagh Basin The licence
covers an areda of 663 square
kilometres and the existing
Islandmagee gas storage project is
located within the boundary The
Company expects that DETI should be
1n a position to 1ssue the licence 1n Q1
2011 dfter it has completed the drafing
of the terms and condihons of the
Icence taking into account the
ouicome of 1is consultation with other
Departments and agencies

[nfraStrata plc
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Charitable and political
donations

Dunng the year the Group made
varnous charitable contributions n the
UK totalling £400 (2009 £1050) No
donations were made for political
purposes (2009 Tnil)

Payment of creditors

The Group’s policy for all supplers 1s to
fix terms of payment when entering into
a business transaction ensure that the
supplier 15 aware of those terms and to
abide by the agreed terms of payment
The number of days trade creditors
was 20 (2009 21) for the Group

Risk management

The financial nisk management
objectives and policies of the Company
1n relaton to the use of inancial
nstruments and the exposure of the
Company and its subsichary
undertakings to its mann nisks, credit nsk
and haquidity nisk are set out 1n note 23
to the financial statements

Directors

The Directors who served dunng the
vear and subsequently were as follows

Executive Directors

A D Hindle
C 5 Gouws
W R Roberts

Non-executive Directors

K M Ratclhiff

M A Abbott

J R Davie (Resigned 3 December 2010)
M E Hazzard

All Directors benefit from the provisions
of individual Duectors Personal
Indemmuty insurance policies Premiums
payable to thurd parties are as
descntbed 1n note 6

The Company operates a share ophon
scheme parhculars of share ophons
granted to Duectors are detaled n
note 6 to the financial statements




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors of the Company
and their abridged CVs are as follows:

Ken Ratclift (Non-Executive Chairman)

Ken Rotcliff, JP BSc FCA  (Non-Execuhve Chairman) (60) 1s a Chartered Accountant with extensive finance and business
expenience He 1s currently College Accountant at Epsom College and Accountant and co-founder of Geokinetics Processing UK
Limited, an o1l and gas industry seismic contractor He was an audit manager with Touche Ross & Co in London before moving
mnte accountancy and finance positions within the o1l and gas industry 1n 1978 Ken has previously held sentor management
positions with Ensign Geophysics Limited Seismic Geocode Limited, Tenneco Corporation and Meilin Geophysical Lirted He
joined the Board in 2007 and became Chairman in October 2007 Ken has been a non-execubve director of Egdon Resources
Plc smce 2001

Andrew Hindle (Chief Executive Officer)

Andrew Hindle, BS¢ MSc PhD FGS CGecl (Chief Executve Officer) (48) 15 a highly experienced geclogist with 25 years worldwide
experience He holds a degree in Geological Sciences gained 1n 1983 from Leeds University and following a year with BP gained
a MSc degree 1n Pefroleum Geology 1n 1985 from Aberdeen University In 1998 he completed a PhD (part-ime) through the Open
Unuversity He received the J € "Cam” Sproule Memenal Award from the American Association of Petreleum Geologists in 1999 He
worked for Texaco from 1985 unhl 1996 on UK and internatonal exploration and development projects, working oversegs from 1990
to 1994 Subsequently, he worked for Anadarke Algerna Corporation from 1996 to 1997 In 1997 he became a founding director of
Egdon Resources Plc and following the demerger of Egdon and InfraStrata, remains a non-executve director of Egdon. Andrew
has been the Chief Executive of the Group since 2005 Andrew 1s also a director of Geofecus Lirmited and Tofee Lirmuted

Craig Gouws (Chief Financial Officer)

Craig Gouws BSc CA (SA) (Chief Financlal Officer) (43) 1s a Chartered Accountant and holds an engineenng degree He
worked within the forestry sector in South Afnca before qualifying as a Chartered Accountant with Ernst & Young in 200t His
finance experience includes working for major auditing organisations in semor financial posibons in South Afnca the Middle
East and the United Kingdom Craig joined the Group 1n an execuhve role duning 2007

Walter Roberts (Legal and Commercial Director and Company Secretary)

Walter Roberts MA (Cantab) (Legal and Commercial Director and Company Secretary) (59) 1s an o1l and gas lawyer with a
strong record 1n commercial and legal management Walter quatified as a soltcitor with Simmons & Simmeons before joimng
Phuilips Petroleum mn 1980 He then worked for Lasmo in both the UK and in Australia where he set up 1ts legal department.
Walter was the principal negohator for UK joint venture commercial negotahons and gas sales for Talisman Energy (UK) Lirted
{previously Bow Valley Petroleum (UK) Limited) untl 1995 More recently he was the London partner of Cummuings & Co and he
15 currently an execuhve director of Pinnacle Energy Limiied and a non-executive director of Egdon Resources Plc Walter jomned
the Board of Egdon Resources Plc in 2001 as o non-execuhve director He joined the Group n an executive role in 2007

Mark Abbott (Non-Executive Director)

Mark Abbott BS¢ FGS (Non-Execuhve Director) (49) 15 a geophysicist He holds a degree in Exploration Sciences (Geoclogy/
Geophysics/Mining Engineering) gained n 1985 from the University of Nottingham He worked for the Briiish Geological Survey
from 1985 to 1992 1in the UK and overseas manly involved in onshore basin analysis in the UK Between 1992 and 1996 he
worked in the Internatonal Division of British Gas Exploraton and Produchon himited evaluahng exploration and appraisal
projects From 1996 to 1997 he was employed by Anadarko Algena Corporation as a Staff Exploraton Geophysicist In 1997 he
became a founding director of Egdon Resources Plc and following the demerger. became the Managing Director of that
company Mark 1s also a director of MA Exploration Services Limited, an exploration consulting company and Bishopswood
Pavihon Limited, an owner of sports grounds and a Trustee of the UK Onshore Geophysical Library

10 InfraStrata plc




Maurice Hazzard (Non-Execuhve Director)

REPORT GF THE DIRECTCRS

Maurnice Hazzard (Non-Executive Director) (72) has extensive business experience m the o1l and gas industry particularly in
large offshore projects He has held senior positions with Phullips Petroleum Homulton Bros Ou & Gas Limited and Halyard
Offshore Limited Between 1979 and 1989 Maunce was responsible for development of the Energy Division of the Tung Group of
compamnes, based m Hong Kong and dunng thus period was Executive Chairman of Houlder Marine Driling Limited From 1989
to 1996 he was a consultant with Mantme Audit & Techmcal Services Limited consulhng to the internattonal offshore o1l and
manne services ndustry From 1996 to 1999 he was Chairman and CEO of PD Systems International Limited, a UK electronics

manufactitrer He 1s also non-execuhve Chairrman of Qrbitren Technologies Limited a software company

Directors Emoluments

The Directors emoluments are disclosed in note 6 to the Financial Statements.

Directors and substantial shareholdings

The Directors of the Company held the following beneficial shareholdings as at 13 December 2010

Ordinary shares of 10p each Number
Ken Ratchff 63 000
Andrew Hindle & 695791
Craig Gouws 35000
Watlter Roberts 1055 440
Mark Abbott 6687666
Maurice Hazzard 1,144

coe
907
005
143
Q06
000

The Company has received notficaton of the following interests 1n 3% or more of the Company's 1ssued share captal at 13

December 2010 The percentages presented are at the date of nohhcaton

Ordinary shares of 10p each Number
Bluehone Investors LLP 35675058
Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Limited 15 480,020

InfraStrata plc

695
2097
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Corporate Governance

The Directors recognise the value of the
UK Corporate Governance Code and
whilst under the AIM rules compliance
15 not required the Directors believe
that the Company appltes the
recommendabons 1n 50 far as 1s
appropnate for a public company of its
size The Company therefore does not
fully comply with the Code

The Board

The Booard comprnsed of three Executive
Directors and four Non-execuhve
Directors whose background and
expenence are relevant to the
Company s achwvities As such the
Directors are of the opimon that the
Board comprises a suiltable balance
and that the recommendahons of the
Combined Code have been
mplemented to an appropriate level
The Board through the Durectors
mamntain regular contact wath 1its
adwisors and public relahons
consultants 1n order to ensure that the
Board develops an understanding of
the views of major shareholders about
the Company

The Board held 8 full Board meetings
during the financial year All were
attended by all Directors In addihon
there were 4 meetings to approve
administrative resolutions which were
onty parlly attended although all
Directors had approved the business

Audit Commitiee

The Audit Commitiee met three tirmes in
the year to 31 July 2010 Ilis members
were Jonathan Davie (Chaurman) Ken
Ratchff and Mark Abbott Members of
the committee at the ime of meetings
attended all meehngs either 1n person
or by telephone In addition the
Chaiwrman met senior representatives of
the external auditors during October
2009, Apri 2010 and July 2010 The
external auditor has unrestricted
access to the Chairman of the
Commuittee

The Audit Committee reviews the scope
and results of the external audit and
monitors the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group The Comrmittee
keeps under review the necessity for
establishing an internal audit function

12

but considers that. given the size of the
Group dand the close mvolvement of
sentor management in day-to-day
operahons there 15 currently no
requirement for such a funchon
Notwnthstanding the absence of an
internal audit functon the Committee
keeps under review the effechveness of
the Group's internal controls and risk
management systems

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneraton Committee plans to
meet at least twice i each year The
conhnued adverse economic chmate
meant that it only felt the need to meet
once wn the year to 31 July 2010 The
members discussed at various times
dunng the year whether to hold a
formal meeting and decided that the
circumstances did not warrant doing
so Its members are Maunce Hazzard
(Chairman) ond Mark Abbott and both
members were in gttendance at the
meeting The Group s policy 1s to
remunerate semor executives fairly in
such @ manner as to facilitate the
recruitiment, retenhon and mohvoheon of
staff The Remuneration Commttee
agrees with the Board a framework for
the remuneration of the Chawrman, the
Execuhve Duectors and the senior
managerment of the Group The
principal objechve of the Committee 1s
to ensure that members of the
execubve management of the Group
are provided with approprnate
incenhves to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a faur and
responsible rmanner, rewarded for thewr
individual coninbutons to the success
of the Group The wiew of the
Commttee 1s that the salaries remain
compettve, but are not over generous
and therefore did not recommend an
adjustment dunng the current financial
year Non-execuhve fees are
considered and agreed by the Board
as a whole and there has been no
specific review 1n this regard dunng
the penod

Nomination Commitiee

The Company has not established a
Normnaton Committee as the Directors
are of the opinion that such a
committee 15 Inappropriate given the
current size of the Company

InfraStrata plc

Going Concern

As explained 1n note 2 {o the iinancal
statements the Directors consider that
there exists a matenal uncertounty
which casts significant doubt upen the
ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern and therefore to realise
its assets and discharge its habilihes 1n
the normal course of business There
can be no certainty that the disposal of
an interest in Islandmagee Storage
Limtted will proceed within the
hmeframe currently expected
Nevertheless after making inquines and
considenng all the relevant factors 1n
relahon to the proposed disposals the
Drrectors are of the oprruon that they
will be able to complete any necessary
funding and have therefore prepared
cash flow forecasts for the Group on
this basis These projections indicate
that the Group will have adequate
cash resources to meet its obhgations
as they fall due for a period of not less
than one year from the date of
approval of these financral statements
For thus reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting
n préparnng the annual financial
statements




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ responsibilities

The Duectors are responsible for
preparing the Report of the Directors
and the financial statements 1n
accordance with applicable law and
regulations

UK Company law requires the directors
to prepare Group and Company
financial statements for each financial
year Under that law the Directors have
elected (as required by the rules of the
AIM market of the London Stock
Exchange) to prepare Group financial
statements 1n accordance with
International Financial Reporhng
Standards ('IFRS") as adopted by the
European Union ("EU) and have
elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the EU and as
applied 1in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The Group financial statements are
requued by law and [FRS adopted by
the EU to present fauly the financial
posthon and performance of the Group
the Companies Act 2006 provides i
relahon te such financial statements
that references in the relevant part of
that Act to financial statements giving
a true and fair view are references to
their achieving a fair presentction

Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financial statements
unless they are sahsfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of
atfairs of the Company and of the
Group and of the profit or loss of the
group for that perniod

In prepanng each of the Group and
Company financial statements the
Directors are required to

+ select suitable accounbhng policies
and then apply them consistently,

+ make Judgements and eshmates thet
are reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether they have been
prepared tn accordance with [FRSs
as adopted by the EU,

+ prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless 1t 15
mappropriate to presume that the
group and the Company wiil
conhnue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate ceceounting records

that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transachons and
disclosa with reasonable accuracy at
any tme the financial position of the
Company and to enable them to
ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Compames Act 2006
They are also respensible for
safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detechon of fraud and other
rregularnities.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integnty of the
corporate and financial informahon
ncluded on the InfraStrata ple website

Leguslaten in the United Kingdom
governing the preparcation and
dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislaton 1n other
junsdichons

Disclosure of information to
the auditors

In the case of each person who was a
Director at the time this report was
approved - so far as the Director was
aware there was no relevant availlable
audit information of which the
Company's auditor was unaware and
that Director had taken all steps that
the Director ought to have taken as a
director to make himself aware of any
relevant information and tc establish
that the Company s auditor was aware
of that informeation.

This informaton 1s given and should be
Interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of 418 of the Comparnes Act
2006

Auditors

A resolubion to re-appoint the auditors
Nexia Smith & Willlamscn, will be
preposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

By order of the Board

M

A Hindle
Director
13 December 2010
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Independent auditors’ report to the
shareholders of InfraStrata plc

We have aqudited the financial
statements of InfraStrata plc for the
vear ended 31 July 2010 which
comprise the Consolidated Stotement of
Comprehensive Income the
Consohidated and Parent Company
Statements of Financial Posihon the
Consolidated and Parent Company
Statements of Cash Flow the
Consolidated and Parent Company
Statements of Changes in Equity and
the related notes 1 to 33 The Hnancial
reporing framewerk that has been
applied in their preparation 1s
applicable law and Internationcl
Financial Reporhing Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Unuon and
as regards the parent Company
financial statements as applied 1n
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

Thus report 1s made solely to the
company’'s members as a body n
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Comparues Act 2006 Our aqudit
work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company’s members
these matters we are required to stete
to them n an qucditor's report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company's
members as a body for our audit work,
for thus report, or for the opimons we
have formed

Respective responsibilities
of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the
Drrectors’ Responsibihhes Statement on
page 13 the Directors are responsible
for the preparahon of the financial
statements and for being satsfied that
they give a true and fair view Our
responsibihity 15 to audit the financial
statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and Internahonal
Standards on Audihng (UK and ireland)
Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board s
(APB s) Ethucal Standards for Auditors

14

Scope of the audit of the
tinancial statements

A descriphion of the scope of an audht
of financial statements 15 provided on
the APBs webstte at wwwirc org uk/
apb/scope/UKNP

Opinicon on financiatl
statements

In our opinion

¢ the financial statements give a true
and farr iew of the state of the
Group s and the parent Company's
affaurs as at 31 July 2010 and of the
Group's loss for the year then ended,
the Group financial statements hawve
been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, and

the parent Company financial
statements have been properly
prepared 1n accordance with [FRSs as
adopted by the European Union and
as apphed 1n accerdance with the
provisions of the Compares Act 2006,
and

the financial statements have been
prepared 1n accordance with the
requirements of the Compames Act
2006

Emphasis of matter - Going
concern

In forming our opinien on the financial
statements which 1s not qualified, we
have constdered the adequacy of the
disclosure made in note 2 to the
financial statements concerning the
Group s ability to conhnue as a going
cohcern The Group s ability to continue
as a going concern 1s dependent on
garmnng addihicnal funding which 1s
expected to be denved from the part
disposal of one of its subsidiaries These
conditions along with the other matters
explained i note 2 to the financial
statements indicate the existence of a
matenal uncertainty which may cast
sigruficant doubt about the Group's
ability to conhnue as a going concern

InfraStrata plc

The financial statements do not include
the adjustments that would result if the
Group was unable to conhnue as a
goimng COncern.

Opinjon on other matter
prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinton the iformaten given 1n
the Report of the Directors’ for the
financual year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the financial statements

Matters on which we are
required to report by
exception

We have nothing to report in respect of
the followmng matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you 1if 1n our opinion

= adequate accounhng records have
not been kept by the parent
Compuany, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us or

= the parent Company financial
statements are not n agreement with
the accounting records and returns or

* certain disclosures of Directors
remunerabhon spectied by law are
not made or

* we have not recewed all the
informaton and explanations we
requtre for our qudit

Andrew Bond
Senor Statutory Auditor,
for and on behalf of

Nexia Smith & Williamson
Statutory Audator
Chartered Accountants

1 Bishops Whar{

Walnut Tree Close
Guildford GU1 4RA

13 December 2010




Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 July 2010

Notes

Ceontinuing operations
Revenue )
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)
Adin—lmsh'ahvé expens;aé M — - )
Operating loss

Fincance income Q
Loss before taxation

Taxation 10
Loss for the year from continu_lng o—pel"cnions
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 11
Loss for the year atirlbutable to the equity
holders of the parent

Other comprehensive income

:rotal comprehénslva loss for the year
attributable to the equity holders of the parent
Basic and diluted loss per share 12
Contmumé; operations )

Discontinued operations

Continumg and discontinued operations

InfraStrata plc

© (397358)

(397358)

23,645
(373,713)
(373.713)
(874,748)

(1.248 461)

(1,248,461)

051p

120p
171p

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009

(386 396)
(386 396)
173 439
(212957)
(212957)
(1068 045)

(1281 002)

(1281 002)

030p
152p
182p

15
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Consohdated statement of fiinancial posiion as at 31 July 2010

Non-cunex—zt assets

Notes 2010 2009

£ ‘g

Plant cmci——equlpment 14 7.280 ) L2D,§4§5,50-’3
Intangible assets 15 . 1.821,551
Total non-current assets 7280 22168054
Cune;xt —assets - ) 7
Recewvables i 17 110732 149,356
Available for sale financial assets 18 12 500 12 500
Cash and cash equivalents i 19 1 260,982 3,066,502
1.384 214 3228358
Assets classified as held for sale 20 26511034 -
Total current assets 27895 248 3228358
Current liabllities ’ B
Trade and other payables 21 (278 604) ’ (925,202)
Liabihhes directly asscciated with assets classified
as held for sale 20 (4.061,668) -
Total current habihties (4,340,274) (925 202)
Net curnrent as;ets and fxet assets held for sale i i 2"3,5541?74 B 2303156
Total assets less current labilities o i 23562254 24471210
Non-current lHablilities )
Oblhgatons under contractual and operatng
lease agreements due afier one year 22 - (2185,741)
Net assets 23562254 22285469
Shareholders’ funds
Share capiial 24 7380420 7038473
Share premium 11,381 095 8576705
Merger reserve 25 8 988112 8988112
Sheores to be 1ssued - ‘ 746 337
Share based payment reserve 26 302435 177189
Retcuned earnings (4 489 808) (3241347)
23,562 254 22,285,969
Company registration number 056409712
Approved and authonsed for issue by the Board on 13 December 2010  Alffindle Director C Dirbtor

InfraStrata ple
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Company statement of financial posthon as at 31 July 2010

Notes
ﬁon—clirrent a;sais ) ) ) i S i )
Investments 16
burrent assets
Receivables 17
Available for sale iingncial assets 18
Cash and cash equivalents 19
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21
Net current assets
Neot assets )

Shareholders' funds B )

Share capital 24
Share prermum

Merger reserve 25
Shares to be 1ssued

Share based payment reserve 26

Retained earrungs

Company registration number 06409712
Approved and authorised for 1ssue by the Board on 13 December 2010

InfraStrata plc

2010 2009

T g £
15257966 15249111
10,873 566 9413119
12,500 -
1072,060 94,418
11958126 9,507,537
(260 311) (107860)
11697815 9399 677

26 955,781 24648,788
7380420 ) 7038 473
11,381,095 8576705
8,466 827 8.466 827

- 746,337

302435 177189

(574 996) (356 743)
26955 781 24648 788

A m@ﬁedor 5, Diéctor

17




FINANCEAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31

Share

capital

£

Balance at 31 July 2008 7038 473

Loss for the vear -
Total comprehensive loss for

the yeca -

Commutment to 1ssue shares -

Share based payments -

Balance at 31 July 2009 7038 473

Loss for the year -

Total comprehensive loss
for the year -

Shares 1ssued 341 947
Share based payments -

Balance ot 31 July 2010 7380420

Share Merger
premium reserve
£ £

8,576 705 8988112

8§ 576705 8988112

2804.390 -

11,381 095 8988112

Company statement of changes in equity for the

Share
capital

€
Balance at 31 July 2008 7038 473
Loss for the year -
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Comrrutment to 1ssue shares -
Share based paymernts -

Balance at 31 July 2009 7038473
Loss for the year -

Total comprehensive loss for the year -

Shares 1ssued 341947
Share based payments -
Balance at 31 July 2010 7380420

18

Share Metrger
premium reserve
<€ 1]

8 576,705 8 466 827

8576705 8466827

2 804,390 -

11 381,095 8 466827

InfraStrata plc

Shares to
be Issued

£

746 337

746,337

(746,337)

Share based

payment
reserve

£
38498

138,691

177189

125246

302435

July 2010
Retained Total
earnings equity
£ €

(1960345) 22681443
(1,281,002) (1281002)

(1281002) (1281002)
- 746337
- 138,691

(3.241,347) 222854469

(1248 461) (1248 461)

(1248,461) (1,248 461)
- 2,400000
- 125246

(4489 808) 23562254

year ended 31 July 2010

Shares to
be issued

€

746 337

746,337

(746,337)

Share based

payment
reserve

£
38498

138 691

177189

125246
302435

Retained Total
edarnings equity
£ €

(167,706) 23952797
(189037)  (189037)
(189037) (189037
- 746337
- 138691

(356 743y 24,648,788
(218 253)  (218,253)

(218 253) (218 253)
2 400,000

125 246
(574 996) 26955781

+
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Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 July 2010

Notes

Net cash {(used in) operating activities 27
Investing activities

Interest recerved

Purchases of mtangible assets

Purchase of plant cnd equipment

Proceeds on disposal of picmt and equlp;rﬁent

ﬁet cas_h (used in) investing ucu\;iﬂes

Finaneing activities i )

Proéeeds on 1ssue of ordincny shares

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net (decreqase) in cash and cash equivalents
éash and cash ecquivalents at l:;egmmng of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Cash and cash squivalents consist of
Cash at bank ) 19

Significant non-cash transaction

2010
£

(1 409.715)

23645
(569 274)

(2 250176)

(2,795 805)

2400 000
2,400 000
(1,895 520)
3066,502

1260982

T £1260982

2009
£
(1175 444)

173439
(530,729)
(4,678 611)
883
(5035018)

(6210462)
9,276 964
3,066,502

£3 066 502

The 2009 cash flow siatement excludes the setlement of a liability of £746,337, where the supplier agreed to accept
919 474 new 10p ordinary shares in settlement, the 2010 cash flow statement excludes the subsequent 1ssue of shares

Cash flows arising from discontinued activities
Cash flows ansing from discontinued cperations are analysed 1n note 27

Company statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 July 2010

Notes
<
Net cash from operating activities 27
Investing activities
Interest recerved
Subscripton 1in shere capital of subsidiary company
Net cash inflow/ (used in) investing activities
Financing activities i
Proceeds on 1ssue of ordmcu"y shc;res
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year i
Cash and cash equivalents consist of
Cash at bank 19

Significant non-cash transactions

2010
£
(1,428 795)

15292
(8 855)
6437

2400000
2400 000
Q77642
94,418
1072 060

£1072060

2009
15376

490
(2100)
(1Lo61O)

13,766
80652
94418

£04 418

The 2009 cash flow statement excludes an increase 1n the lean to a subsidiary company of £746 337 and the associated
future 1ssue of 919 474 new 10p ordmary shares the 2010 cash flow statement excludes the subsequent 1ssue of shares

InfraStrata plc
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 July 2010

1 General information

InfraStrata plc 1s a company
mncorporated in England & Wales under
the Companies Acts 1985 - 2006 and 15
domiciled 1n the United Kingdom and
1s isted on the AIM market of the
London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies

The financial statements are based on
the following accountng policies
which have been consistently applied,
except that IFRS § Operating segments
has been adopted in place of IAS 14
Segmental Reporting and the revisions
to [AS 1 Presentaton of Financial
Statements have been adopted

The adoption of these standards has
no mpact on the reported result or
reported net assets of the Group the
comparahve disclosures relabng to
segmental] information have been
restated

Basis of preparation

InfraStrata plc adopted International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and [FRIC Interpretations as adopted
by the Europedn Union and except as
noted below, effective 1n July 2010 as
the basis for preparation of its financral
statements The financial informahon
has been prepcared under the histencal
cost convention as modiited by the
revaluahon of certain financial assets

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the
financial statements on the going
concern basis which assumes that the
Group will conhinué 1n operatonal
existence without significant
curtanlment in its achwihes for the
foreseeable future

The Group requires addihonal funding
1In order to progress the development of
the Islandmagee gas storage project in
which it holds a 65% mterest and to pay
future general and admimistrative costs
The immediate future development
costs of the Portland gas storage project
will be funded by partners

The Drrectors believe that the disposal

of an interest in Islandmagee Storage
Limited 15 the best way of maxirmising
shareholder value by allowing an
enhty other than InfraStrata ple to
develop this project. 1t 15 expected that
such a disposal will provide working
capittal for the Group and will transfer
responsibihty for funding the immediate
future development of the Isiandmagee
gas storage project to the new partner
1t is further proposed to sell the Group's
enhre interests in Portland Gas ESP SL.
and Sager Meer Energy GmbH

The Duectors consider that there exists
a maternal uncertainty which casts
sigmficant doubt upon the ability of the
Group fo conhinue as a gomng concern
and therefore to realise its assets and
discharge its habilities in the normal
course of business There can be no
certainty that the disposat of an interest
1n Islandmages Storage Limited will
proceed within the hmeframe currently
expected Nevertheless after making
Inquiries and considenng all the
relevant factors in reiaghon to the
proposed disposals, the Directors are of
the opinion that they will be able to
complete any necessary funding and
have therefore prepared cash flow
forecasts for the Group on this basis
These projections indicate that the
Group will have adecuate cash
rasources to meet 1ts obligatons as they
falt due for a pencd of not less than
one yeqar from the date of approval of
these financial statements For this
regson they contnue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the annual financial
statements

I for any reason the uncertainty
described above cannot be successfully
resolved the going concern basis may
no longer be appropnate The fiinancial
statements do not include any
adjustments that would result if the
Group and Company were unable to
contnue as a gomg concern.

InfraStrata plc

Standards and
interpretations 1n issue not
yvet adopted

At the date of authornisaton of these
financial statements, the following
Standards and Interpretations which
have not yel been applied 1n these
financial statements were 1 1ssue but
not yet effective (and in some cases
had not yet been adopted by the EU)
and that may have a matenal impact
going forward

IFRS 9 Financicl Instruments

IAS 24 (revised 2009) Related Party
Disclosures

IFRIC 19 Extnguishing Financial
Liabilites with Equity Instruments

The Directors anticipete thot all of the
above standards and interpretations
will be adopted 1n the Groups
financual statements 1n future periods

Basis of consolidation

The financial informathon imncorporates
the finaneial informaton of the
Company and enhtes controlled by the
Company Control 1s achieved where
the Company has power to govern the
financial and operahng policies of an
investee entity so as to obtain benefits
from 1ts activities

Business combinations and
goodwill

On acqusihon, the assets and habibhhes
and conhngent habilthes of subsichiarnies
are measured at thewr faur values ot the
date of acqusthon. Any excess of cost of
acqusiticn over the fair values of the
idenhfiable net assets acquired 15
recogrused as goodwill Any deficiency
of the cost of acquisihon below the fair
values of the 1dentfiable net assets
acquured (e discount on acquisiton) 1s
credited to the income statement in the
perntod of acquisthon. Goodwill arising
on consohdahon 1s recogrused as an
asset ang reviewed for impairment at
least annually Any impairment 15
recognised immediately in the income
statement and 15 not subsequently
reversed




Disposal groups
held-for-sale

Disposal groups are classified as assets
heid for sale when theiwr carrying
amount 15 to be recovered principally
through a sale transachon and a sale 1s
considered highly probable They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount
and falr value less costs to sell if thear
carrying amecunt 1s to be recovered
principally through a sale tansachon
rather than through contnuing use

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal
reporhing provided to the chief
operating decision-maker as required
by IFRS 8 "Operatng Segments” The
chief operatng decision-maker who 1s
responsible for allocatng resources
and assessing performance of the
operaling segments has been
identbfied as the Board of Directors.

The accountng policies of the
reportable segments are consistent with
the accounting policies of the Group as
a whole Segment profit represents the
profit earned by each segment without
allocahon of gains or losses on the
disposal of avallable-for-sale
investments, investment income, interest
payable and tax This 1s the measure of
profit that 1s reported to the Board of
Directors for the purpose of resource
altocahon and the assessment of
segment performance

When assessing segment performance
and considenng the allocaton of
resources the Board of Directors review
nformaton about segment assets and
lhiabilibes

Plant and equipment

Plant and equupment 1s stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any
recognised impcnrment loss

The mitial cost of an asset comprises 1t
purchase price or construction cost and
any costs directly atinbutable to
bringnng the asset mnto operation

Depreciation 15 charged se as to wnte
off the cost of assets over thewr eshmated
useful lives using the staight-hne
method once the assel has been
brought into use, on the following basis

Office equipment 20 - 33%

Capitalised tangnble gas storage
inclusive of related and pipehne costs
are not depreciated as the facility 18
under construction and not in use

The cartying values of plant and
ecquipment are reviewed for
mpairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be
recoverable

Gas storage research and
development costs

Research expenditure, incurred when
undertaking explorahion achwvihes for
gas storage opportunuhes 1s written off
in the year in which it is incurred

Capitalisation and
impairment of intangible
gas storage assets

Costs of development of gas storage
faciihes are capitalised as intangible
assels once it 1s probable that future
sconomic benefits that gre agtinbutable
to the assets will flow to the Group and
until consent to construct has been
awarded at which time the capitalised
costs are transferred to plant and
equpment. The nature of these costs
includes all direct costs incurred 1n
project development No amortisation
or depreciation 1s provided until the
storage facility 1s brought into
cormmercial use

An impairment test 15 performed
annually and whenever events or
crcumstances cnsing dunng the
development phase indicate that the
carrying value of a development asset
may exceed its recoverable amount The
aggregate carrying value 1s compared
aganst the expected recoverable
amount of the cash generahng umnt,
generally by reference to the present
value of the future net cash flows
expectad to be denved from storage
revenue The present value of future
cash flows 1s calculated on the basis of
future storage prices and cost levels as
forecast at the balance sheet date

The cash generatng unit apphed for
impairment test purposes 1s generally
an individual gas storage facility
Where the carrying value of the facihty
15 greater than the present value of its
future cash flows a provision 15 made
Any such provisions are charged to
cost of sales

InfraStrata plc
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Intangible assets - oil &
gas expenditure and
evaluation expenditure

The Group accounts for ol & gas
expenditure under the full cost
accountng method

Costs {other than payments to acquire
nghts to explore) incurred prior to
acquinng the nghts to explore are
charged directly to the income
statement All costs incurred after the
rights to explore an area have been
obtained, such as geological,
geophysical daota costs and other direct
costs of explorabon and appraisal are
accumulated and capitalised as
intangible explorcahon and evaluation
assets ("E&E")

E&E costs are not amorhsed prior to the
conclusion of appraisal activities i
technical feasibility 1s demonstrated
and commercial reserves are
discovered then following development
sanction, the carrying value of the
relevant E&E asset will be reclassified
as a development and production
asset, but only after the carrying value
of the E&E asset has been assessed for
mparment and where appropnate s
carrying value adpusted

If after completion of appraisat
activities in an area 1t 1s not possible to
determine technical feasibility or
commercial viability then the costs of
such unsuccessful explorahon and
evaluation are written off to the income
statement as a component of costs of
sales in the period the relevant events
occur The costs associated with any
wells which are abandened are fully
amortised when the abandonment
decision 15 taken.

When o1t or gas 1s sold from E&E assets
the carrying value of the E&E asset 1s
reduced by the gross profit generated
from the sale

Borrowing costs

Boriowing costs directly atinbutable to
the construction of an asset that
necessanly takes a substantial period
of ime to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of the respechve assets Al other
borrowing costs are expensed 1n the
period they occur Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds
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Investments

Investrents in subsidianes are stated at
cost less provision for impairments

Taxation

Fax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and any
defetred tax The taxable result differs
from the net result as reported 1n the
income statement because 1t excludes
items of Income or expense that are
taxable or deduchble in other years
and 1t further excludes items that are
never taxable or deduchble The
Company’s liability for current tax 1s
calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substanhally enacted
by the balance sheet date Deferred
tax 1s the tax expected to be payable
or recoverable on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and
habihihies in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computahion of taxable profit,
and 15 accounted for using the balance
sheet lability method Deferred tax
habilthes are generally recogrused for
all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recogrused to
the extent that it 15 probable that
taxable profits will be avanlable against
which deduchble temporary
differences can be utlised Such assets
and ligkilihes are not recogrused i the
ternporary difference arises from
goodwill o1 from the uutal recognition
(cther than in a business combnnation)
of other assets and Lhabiliies i o
transachon that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit
Deferred tax habiliies are recognised
for kaxable temporary differences
ansing on mnvestments 1n subsidianes
except where the Group 1s able to
control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it 15 probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse 1n
the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets 15 reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent
thet 1t 15 no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be
avatlable to altow all or part of the
asset to be recovered Deterred tax 1s
calculated ¢t the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the peniod when
the hability 15 settled or the asset
realised

Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to
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the income statement, except when 1t
relates to items charged or crecited
directly to other comprehensive mcome
In which case the deferred tax 1s also
dealt with 1n other comprehensive
income Deferred tax assets and
Itablities are offset when there 15 a
legally enforceable nght to set off
current tax assets against current tax
lhabilihes and when they relate to
mcome taxes levied by the same
taxahon authonty and the Group
intends to settle its current assets and
habilihes on a net basis

Foreign currency

Transachons 1n foreign currency are
1ecorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the
transactions At each balance sheet
date, monetary assets and habihtes
that are dencrminated 1n foreign
currencles are retranslated at the rates
prevaiing on the balance sheet date
and gains o1 losses are taken to
operatng prohit

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
or hire purchase lease contracts
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substanhally all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee All other leases
are classithed as operatng leases

Rental costs under operatng leases are
charged cn a stranght-line basis over
the lease term

Share based payment
transactions

Employees (including senior executives)
of the Group receive remuneraton in
the form of share based payment
fransachons whereby employees render
services as considerahon for equity
wmstruments (equity settled fransachons)

The equity settled transachons are
measured at the fair value of the
equity mstrument as at the grant date
and the expense 1S recognised,
together with a corresponding increase
In equity over the peried in which the
performance and or service condittons
are fulfilled endmg on the date on
which the relevant employees become
fully enhtled to the award (the vesting
date) The cumulabve expense
recognised for equity settled
ransactons at each reporting date
untl the vesting date reflects the extent
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to which the vesing penod has expired
and the Group s best eshmate of the
number of equity mstruments that wll
uthmately vest The income statement
charge o1 credit for a period represents
the movement 1n cumulahve expense
recogrused as at the begmmmng and
end of that period No expense 1s
recognised for awcnds that do not
ulhmately vest except for awards
where vesting 1s conditional upon o
market condibon, which are teated as
vesting respective of whether or not
the market condihon 1s sahisfied
provided that ail other performance
condibons are satsfied

Where the terms of an equity setiled
award are modified as a minmum an
expense 1s recogrused as If the terms
had not been modified In addihon an
expense 1§ recognised for any
modification which increases the total
faur value of the share based payment
arrangement, or 1s otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the
date of modificahon

Where equity settled award 13
cancelled 1t 15 treated as if 1t had
vested on the date of cancellaton, and
any expense not yet recogrnused for the
award 1s recognused immediately
However if a new award 15 substtuted
for the cancellahen award, and
designated as o replacement award on
the date that 15 granted the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they
were a medificahon of the ongenal
award as descnibed 1n the previous
paragraph

Retirement benefit costs

The Company has a defined
contribution plan which requires
contributions to be made mto an
independently administered fund The
amount charged to the income
statement 1n respect of pension costs
reflects the contnbuheons payable n the
yvear Differences between contributions
payable durning the year and
contnibuhons actually poid are shown
as either accrued hiabilihes or prepad
assets in the balance sheet

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financigl habihties
are recognised on the balance sheet
when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the
mstrument




Trade and other receivables are
measured at mihal recogrution at fair
value and are subsecquently measured
at amorhsed cost using the effective
interest method A provision Is
established when there 1s objechve
evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due The
amount of any provision 1s recogmnsed
1n the income statement. Cash and cash
equivalents comprnse cash held by the
Group and short-terrm bank deposits
with an onginal matunty of three
months or less

Tiade and other payables are mtally
measured at four value, and are
subsequently measured at amortsed
cost, using the effechive interest rate
method

Financial igbiihes and equity
mstruments 1ssued by the Group are
classified 1n accordance with the
substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into ¢nd the
defimtions of a inancial hiakility and
om equity instrument An equty
mstrument 15 any contract thet
evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deductng all
of 1ts habilihes Equity instruments 1ssued
by the Company are recorded at the

3 Segment information

proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue
costs Equuty issued for non monetary
consideration 15 recorded at the fair
value of the equity instruments 1ssued,
except when a parent recrganises the
structure of its group by establishing ¢
new entity and (qQ) the new parent
obtains control of the onginal parent by
1ssuing eculty instruments 1n exchange
for exishng equity instruments of the
onghngl parent, (b) the assets and
habiiities of the new group and the
orniginal group are the same
immechately before and after the
reorgamsaton, and (c) the owners of
the onginal parent before the
reorgarnisation have the same absolute
and relative nterests 1n the net assets of
the onginal group and the new group
immedictely before and after the
reorganisabon In this latter case ecuity
mstrements 1ssued by the new parent
are recogrused at the carrying amount
of its share of the equity items shown 1n
the separate financial statements of the
onginal parent at the date of the
regrgamsaton.

Interest beanng bank loans overdrafis
and other loans are recorded at the
proceeds recewved net of direct 155ue
costs Finance costs are gecounted for
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on an accruals basis in the iIncome
statement using the effecttve interest
method

Available for sale financial assets are
those non-denvahve financial assets
that are designated as available for
sale of are not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit and
loss held to matunty investments or
loans and receivables After inihal
recognibon available for sale financial
assets are measured at fair value with
gains or losses being recogrused as o
separate component of equity untl the
investment 15 derecognised or untl the
imvestment 15 determined to be
impared ct which hme the cumulative
gaun or loss previcusly reported in
equity 15 included 1n the income
statement. The farr value of investments
that are achvely traded n organsed
financial markets 1s determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices
at the close of business on the balance
sheet date For investmments where there
is no achve market, faur value 15
determined using appropriate valuchon
techniques

Finance income

Finance 1ncome 1s recogmsed on an
accrual basis

The Directors have determined the Group s operatng segments by reference to the nsk profile of the Group s activities
which are affected predominately by location of the Group s assets The Group s head office 1s located 1n the Umited
Kingdom with operations located m Dorset, Northern Ireland and Eurcpe The business of each segment 15 the development
and construction of gas storage and associated facilihes

2010

lLoss on ordinary activities by segment

Gas storage developmerit
Assets by segments

Gas storage development
Liabilitles by segment
Gas storage development
Net assets by segment
Gas storage development

Discontinued (see note 11 and 20)

Capital expenditure on segmental assets

Gas storage development
Pepreciation

Dorset Northern Continental Continuing Total
Ireland Europe unallocated

€ < £ £ )

735259 100,671 38,818 373713 1248 461

24066195 2419 261 25578 1391494 27902,528

4000554 58 900 2214 278 606 4340274

20065 641 2 360 361 23364 1112888 23562254

3346830 592,791 - - 3939621

- - - 21070 21070
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3 Segment informcahon cont

2009 Discontinued {see note 11)
Dorset Northern
Ireland
£ 1A
Loss on ordinary activiles by segment
Gas storage development 850 607 113943
Assets by segments )
Gas storage development 20396867 1872100
Liabilities by segment
Gas storage development 2871101 129,654
Net assets by segment
Gas storage development 17,525,766 1742 446
Capital expenditure on segmental assets )
Gas storage development 5171931 557892
Depreciation - -
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4 Other expenditure

Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates
- for the cudit of the Company .;.—fmcmc:ml siatements

- for the audit of the Company s subsidicmies
N st:ner_serv{ces-renlhﬁn-g to tcfxahon

- all other services )

Depreciation

Net foreign exchange loss

Ope;cm_ng lease rentals - land and buxldfngé i
Research costs

5 Employee imnformahon

Executve Directors and siaff

Statf c?:sts for the above persons were

Wages and salares i

Social security costs

Defined contribuhon pension plan expenditure

Share based payments

InfraStrata ple

Continental
Europe

£

103 495

1982

3718

(1.736)

2010

Continuing
unallocerted

£
212957
3125463
106 470

3018993

21 880

12750

17750
12450
3556
21070
5278
1521146
103 716

" 854196
89 449
27,808

125,246

1096.699

Total

1281 002
25396412

3110.943
22285469

5729823
21880

2009

11,250
17750
11950
3,726
21880
10,482
1529152
120 268

2009
Number

895766
102163

29950
138,691

1166570
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6 Directors’ and key management emoluments and compensation

Group and company 2010

Total
Salary & fees Bonus Benefits Pension 2010
£ € £ £ £
Executive Directors
Andrew Hindle 250,000 - 2,042 - 252042
Crang Gouws 122,219 - 1462 6000 129 681
Walter Roberts 120000 - 2,788 6000 128 788
Non-executive Directors
Ken Ratcliff 37500 - - 1875 39.375
Mark Abbott 15.000 - - - 15000
Jonathan Davie 15,000 - - - 15,000
Maurice Hoazzard 15000 - - 750 15750
574 719 - 6,292 14 625 595636
Share based payment aftributable {o Directors 86001
Employers natonal msurance coniributions 65641
747578
Group and company 2009
Total
Salary & fees Bonus Benefits Pension 2010
£ < £ £ £ )
Executive Directors
Andrew Hmndle 250000 - 1757 - 251,757 ’
Craig Gouws 122048 . 1,260 6,000 129308
Watlter Roberts 120,000 - 2392 6,000 128 392
Non-executive Directors ) " )
Ken Ratchiff 37.500 - - 1.875 30,375
Mark Abbott 15000 - - - 15000
Jonathan Davie 8780 - - - 8 750
Mcaunce Hazzard 15,000 - - 750 15,750
568 298 - 5409 14,625 588,332
Share based payment atiributable to Directors 107,085
Employers natonal msurance contributions 65106
760,523

The total of short-term employee benefits for Directors was £646,952 (2009 £638813)
The Directors cue considered to be the Group s key management

Company

Directors emoluments comprised £574,719 (2009 £568 298) 1n respect of salary and bonuses £6,292 (2009 €5 409)
N respect of benefits In additon there was a Directors pension benefit expense of £14 625 (2009 $14 625) and
employers' natondl insurance confributions of £65 941 (2009 £65106) The charge in respect of share based
payments was £86001 (2009 £107085)

Aggregate emoluments above include amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares 1n the
Company granted or held by Directors Details of Enterprise Management Incentve and other options granted on
the 25 January 2008 are as follows
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Directors’ and key management emoluments and compensation cont.

Number Exercise price Exercisable from Exeicisable to
DU T - E..__~,-__,_.

Executive Directors ) :
Andrew Hindle 43859 228  1January 2011 31 December 2017
Craig Gouws 43,859 228 1 January 2011 31 December 2017
Waller Roberts 7 a3ss9 7 228 77 Tiandary 200 31 December 2017
Non-executive Dixecfors o ) o
Ken Ratchff 21929 228 1 January 2011 31 December 2017
Mark Abbott 21,929 228 1 January 2011 31 December 2017
Maurice Hazzard 21929 228 1 January 2011 31 December 2017

No options were granted to Directors i 2010 or 2009

Key man msurance premums of £777 (2009 £777) were paid for Executive Directers and directors indemmty
Insurcmce premiums of £18133 (2009 £18 786) were paid In respect of all Directors Executive and Non-execuhive
Directors participette in the Group Stakeholder Pension Plan under which Group Lite Cover 1s offered

7 Share based payment plans

A share based payment plan was created in the year ended 31 July 2008 All Directors and employees are enttled to a grant
of options subject to the Bocrd of Directors’ approval The ophons do not have a cash setllement alternative  The optons
granted are Enterprise Management Incentive share ophons for qualifying employees

There were 45 200 ophons issued durning 2010 (2009 ml) The following table illustrates the number and weighted average
exercise prices (WAEP) of and movements in share options dunng year

2010 2010 2009 2009

Number ~ WAEP Number WAEP

g ) g

Outstanding at the beginmng of the year 255898 244 318 831 243
Granted during the year _ 45,200 089 - -
Forfeited duning the year - - 62,933 239
Outst“cmdmé at the end of the year 301098 206 255898 244

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

The weighted average remaining veshng pened for the share ophons outstanding at 31 July 2010 1s 092 years (2009 18 years)
The range of exercise prices for opliions outstanding at the end of the year was £0 885 - £390

The faur value of equuty seftled optons granted 1s eshmated s at the date of the grant using a Black- Scholes model taking
nto account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted The following table hsts the inputs to the mode!
used to value the ophons 1ssued 1n 2010 and 2008

2010 2008
Expected volatility (%) ) 35% 35%
Risk free mterest rate 05% 5%
Weighted average contractual Lfe of option (years) ) 10 95
Expected dlwden&—x;leld o h ' nil nil
Weighted average share price (€) 0885 243

The expected volahlty reflects the assumption that the hustorical volahlity of @ sample of o1l and gas compdnies 15 indicative of
future trends for [nfraStrata ple which may not necessarily be the actual outcome The expected hife of the ophions is based on
Directors best estmate and may not necessanly be indicative of the patterns that may occur
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8 Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contnbuhon relirement plan for all quahfying employees who wish to participate The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees

The total cost charged to expenses of £27808 (2009 £29.950) represents contmbutions payable to the scheme by the Group at
rates specified 1n the rules of the scheme for the year As at 31 July 2010 employer and employee contributions of €4 557 (2009

£3,757) due 1n respect of the current penod had not been paid over to the scheme the payment was made on the 10 August

2010 (2009 10 August 2009)

¢ Finance mcome

2010 2009
N £ g
Interest on bank deposits 23645 173,439
10 Income tax
The major compenents of iIncome tax expense for the years ended 31 July 2010 and 2009 are
2010 2009
) £ ) <
a) Consolidated Income statement
Current income tax charge - -
Adjustments 1n respect of current income tax of previous years ) - -
b) A reconcillation between tax expense and the preduct of - o T
accounting loss for the years ended 31 July 2010 and 2009 is as follows
Accounhng loss before tax from conhnuing operations {373 713) (212957)
Loss on conhnuing achvihes mulhphed by the stmdard rate of tax
(28% 2009 - 28%) (104 640) (59 628)
Expenses not permitted for tax purposes and pre-trading expendiiure 13,843 {4111)
HmZQ Mh.mmg differences 5500 6,023
Group rehef 13 152
Tax losses carried forward (84 884) (57564)
A discontinued operations reconcili&tlon between tax expense and the product of accounting loss for the years
ended 31 July 2010 and 2009 is as follows
2010 2006
€ £
Accounting loss before tax from discontinued operations (874,748) (1068,045)
Loss on disconinued actvihes mulhphed by the standard rate of tax
(28% 2009 - 28%) (244 929) (299 053)
Expenses not permutted for tax purposes and pre-trading expenditure 244 942 269 205
Group relief i 13 152

Income tax expense reported 1n note 11

c) Factors that may aftect the future tax charge

The Group has trading tosses of £588 568 (2009 £327017) which may reduce future tax charges Future tax charges may also be

reduced by capital allowances on cumulative capital expenditure

d) Deferred taxation

The Group has an unrecogrused deferred taxaton asset ansing from trading losses carned forward of £158 914 (2009 £91 565) at
year end The deferred tax asset 1s not recogmised due to the uncertainty over 1its future recovery

The deferred tax asset 1s calculated at a rate of 27% however, the Government has announced that the rate of corperation tax
will reduce by 1% per annum to 24% and this 1s the rate expected to be 1n force when the tax losses may be able to be utilised
The deferred tax asset calculated at this tax rate 15 £141 256

InfraStrata plc 27




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Discontinued operchons

2010 2009

£ £

Revenue - -
Net operating costs 874 748 1,068 045
Loss from operations ) ) 7 g7amas 1068,045
Loss before tax i 874,748 1068 045
Tax charge (note 10) - -
Loss affer tax _ 874748 1068,045

Detmls of the discontinued operations are giwven in note 20

The results for the discontinued activities of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2009 have been re-presented as required by
IFRS 5 so that the disclosures relate to all operations that have been discontinued by 31 July 2010 for all periods presented

12 Loss per share

2010 2009
Loss £ £
The loss for the purposes of basic and diluted loss per share being
the net loss atinbutable to equity shareholders
Continuing operations ) 373713 i 212957
Discontinued operahons 874 748 1068 045
Continuing and discontnued operr_:zt;é_n—s—“ T 1,248 461 1281.002
Number of shares
Weighted average numbervomf»c;rdgary ;ﬁmes for the purposes T
of basic earnings per share 73023939 70384 727
Basic earnings per share .
Continuing operatons 05lp 030p
Disconhinued operatons 120p 1 52;3
Conhnuing and discontinued operahons a 171p 182p

In accordance with [AS 33 diluted earnings per share calculabons are not presented as assumed conversion of outstanding
share options (note 7) would be anh-dilutive as such the diluted earnings per share 15 equal to the basic loss per share

13 Losses atinbutable to InfraStrata plc

The loss for the period dealt with 1n the financial statements of InfraStrata plc was £218,253 (2009 £189037) As provided by
5408 of the Comparnes Act 2006 no mcome statement 15 presented m respect of InfraStrata plc

14 Plant and equipment 2010 . '

Gas storage

(under construction) Office equipment Total
) i B g i £ ) &

Cost ) i ) T
At 1 August 2009 " i 20318153 69,648 " 20387801
Addions T 3346830 3346 830
Transfer to assels classified as held for sale (23 664,983) - (2:-5 664,983)
At 31 July 2010 - . T 69648 " 69648
Daepreciation S 7
At 1 August 2009 i - 41298 41,298
Charge for the year - 21070 21070
At 31 July 2010 ) - 62,368 62368
Nét bobk value ) v i h T
At 31 July 2010 - 7,280 7280
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Plant and equpment 2009

Gas storage
(under construction)

g
Cost
At 1 August 2008 15,146,222
Additons 5171931
DLISDOSCﬂSA ) -
At 31 July 2009 20318153
5epreciat:lon - B o o
At 1 August 2008 -
Cheage for the year -
Disposals -
At 31 July 2009 ' -
Net book value
At 31 July 2009 20,318,153

15 Intangible assets 2010

Cost

At 1 August 2009

Additons

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale
At 31 July 2010 )
Amortisation

At 1 August 2009
Ch?:rge for the year
At 31 July 2010

Net book value

At 31 July 2010

Intangible assets 2009

Cost

At 1 August 2008
Addiions ) o
At 31 July 2009
Amoéﬂs&ﬁon

At 1 August 2008
éharge for the yec}
At 31 July 2009

Net book value

At 31 July 2009
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Office equipment Total
£ £
68730 15214 952
1,801 5173732
(883) (883)
69 648 20387801
19,785 19,785
21,880 21,880
(367 (367)
41,298 41 298
28 350

20.346.503

Development costs
-Gas storage

£

1821551
592,791
(2414 342)

1,263,659
557,892
1821,551

1,821 551

29




NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 Investments

Company 2010 Company 2009

£ £

Balance at the beginning of the year 15249111 15247011
Addimons ) ) ) 8855 2100
Balance at the end of the year ; ) 15257966 15249111

Subsidiares
The Company's subsichary undertakings at 31 July 2010, all of which are wholly owned unless indicated otherwise, are as follows

Principal undertaking Country of incorporation

InfraStrata UK Limited Holding and corperate England
Portland Gas ESP SL Spanish sub surface gas Spain
storage developer

InfraStrata Trading Limited i Dormant Englcmci
g_ager l\?[ee} Ene;a( G}nb]:l (SMO% c;wned} i German :.sub surface gas storage developer S Gerrfxc;ﬂw}
InfraStrata UK Limited owns the following subsidiaries

Portland Gas Holdings Limited Holding England
lslandrr{ar;;ee Stoirage Limited (65% owned) Sub surface gas storage developer Northern Ireland
InfraStrata Limited Holding England

Portland Gas Holdings Limited owns
the following subsidiaries.

Portland Gas Sterage Limited Sub surface gas storage developer England
Portland Guas Transportahon Lirmited Gas storage pipeline developer Engiand

In January 2010 InfratStrata UK Limited Moyle Energy Investments Limited and Islandmagese Storage Limited entered into a
preliminary shareholders agreement whereby Moyle Energy Investments Limited acquired a 35% interest 1in Islandmagee
Storage Limited InfraStrata UK Limiuted conhnues to assume one hundred percent of the nsks and rewards of cwnership of
Islandmagee Storage Limited (including vobng nghts) and therefore InfraStrata ple includes the total assets and habibtes in its
consolidated results

17 Recetvables

Group Group Company Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

£ £ < £

Amounts due from Group undertakings - - 10809 819 @352 960
Other receivables 71985 75791 25,000 34118
Prepayments 38,747 73565 38 747 26,041
) 10732 149 356 10 873 566 9413119

An element of the Company and Group’s credit nisk 1s atinbutable to its receivables Based on pricr expenence and an
assessment ¢f the current economic environment, the Directors did not consider any provision for rrecoverable amounts was
requued and consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximates to theu far value There are no set terms for the
repayment of the amounts due from Group undertakings and they are expected {o be recovered following the development of
the project and or following the part disposal of the project companies

18 Avallable for sale financial assets

Group Group Company Company

) ) 2010 2009 2010 2009

14 £ £ 7

At August S 12 500 12 500 . .
Transfer from subsidiary - - 12500 -
At 31 July 12 500 12500 12500 -

The mvestment in secunhes above represents an investment 1n Egdon Resources plc redeemable preference shares The assets
are held at cost as an approximation of faur value These are the only financial assets which the Group and Company are
requured to carry at far vaiue
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19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash ot bank

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

€ £ £ £
1260982 3066 502 1072,060 24418

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value The credit nsk on iquid funds 18
lmited because the counter-parhes are banks with high crecht ratngs

20 Assets held for sale
and disconhnued
operations

A Memorandum of Understanding
{"MOU") was signed with US independent
energy company eCORP Internahonal
L1C ("eCORP") relating to InfraStrata’s
gas storage projects. The disposal group
comprses the assets described mn this
note In respect of the Portland Project
eCORP Q1] & Gas UK Lirited undertook
to fund the fust cavern well and thereby
acquired the night to match the project

Assets classified as held for sale
Property, plant and eguipment

expenditure invested to date by
InfraStrata (£229m) i return for 50% of
the share capital of the project company
Portland Gas Ltd. The transachon was
completed after year end

Under the terms of the MOU the
Company and Mutual Energy are
continuing discussions with eCORP to
acquire 40% of the share capital of
Islandmagee Storage Limited The terms
of the MOU have been extended to 30
April 2011 but on a non-exclusive basis

Intangible assets - gas storage development costs

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabihihes classified as held for sale
Current habilities

Trade creditors and accruals

Other taxabon and social securtty
Accruals

Other contractual agreements

Non-current habilittes
Oblhgathons under lease agreements
Other contractual agreements

21 Trade and other payables

Trade creditors
Other taxahon and social secunty
Accruals

Other contractual cxg‘reéments

Group 2010 £ Group 2009 £
67,039 174 355

37250 34904

174 317 2156943
.7 500000
278 606 925202

The Company will also dispose of its
interest 1n the share capital of Sager
Meer Energy GmbH and Portland Gas
ESP SL 1its gas stoerage projects in
Germany and Spain

Whilst the assets held for sale are
classified as current assets, due to the
nature of the fransaction the disposal
of the Portland Project will not generate
a cash inflow for the Group

£
23,664,983
2,414 342
334563
97156
26,511,034

73400
4182
114857
700000
892,439

2,168,286
1000 943
4,061,668

Company 2010 £ Company 2009 €
176 080 56,356

37250 34,904

46 881 16 500

260311 107860

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other pavables approximates to their fonr value Other contractual
agreements relate to amounts due to the Portland Gas Trust under a Sechon 106 deed of undertaking which are not expected
to be paid untl the Portland project 1s fully funded for 2010 these amounts are disclosed within habilities classified «s held for

sale (note 20)

InfraStrata plc
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22 Non-current habilihies

Oblhgations under lease agreements
Other contractual agreements

Transfer to habihties directly associated with

non-current assets classiftied as held for sale

Group 2010 £ Group 2009 £
2,168,286 990,741
1000943 1,195,000

(3,169 229)

- 2185741

Company 2010 € Company 2009 €

The obligahon under a lease agreement is to be setlled over a penod of 13 years Under the terms of a separate agreement
with the lessor the Group will pay £120000 per annum of the liability ansing under the lease untl the Portland project 15 fully
funded The balance will be settled by way of an interest bearing loan which will be repaid when the project is fully funded
Other contractual agreements relate to payments to be made to the Portland Gas Trust under a Sechon 106 planning
agreement and will be seftled over a period of 20 years

23 Financial assets and
habihities

The Group and Company’s fiinancial
mstruments comprise cash and cash
equivalents and items such as trade
payables and other receivables which
arise directly from the Group s
operations The Group's operahons
expose 1t to a vanety of financial nisks
ncluding credit risk, hquidity risk
interest rate risk and foreign currency
exchange nisk Given the size of the
Group the Directors have not
delegated the responsibibity of
momtoring financial nsk management

Available for sale financial assets
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

The reconciling item between the Other
recelvables presented above and that
presented in note 17 and 20 1s the VAT
receivable

Interest rate risk

The Company and Group 1s expesed to
Interest rate risk as a result of positive
cash balances, denominated 1n sterhing
which earn interest at a vanable rate
These attract interest at rates that vary
with bank interest rates Cash at bank
ai floating rates consisted of money
market deposits which earn interest at
rates set in advance from penods of 1-3

The currency risk disclosures at 31 July 2010 are as follows

Accounts payable

to a subcommittee of the board The
objectives of the financial instrument
policies are to reduce the Group and
Company s exposure to financial risk
The pohcies set by the beard of
Direclors are implemented by the
Company s finance department

Credit risk

The crecht nsk on liquid funds 15 hmited
because the Group and Company
pohcy 15 to only deal with counter
parhes with high credit rahngs and
more than one institution 1s utilised to
deposit cash holdings The Group held
funds 1in the Bank of Scofiand Northern

Group 2010 £ Group 2009 ¢
12 500 12,500

71985 20,324
12560982 3066 502

months by reference to Sterling LIBOR
An effechve interest rate increase or
decrease by 1% on the cash and cash
equivalents balance at year end would
result in a before tax fiinancial effect of
an increase or decrease 1n investrment
revenues and equty for the Group of
£13 581 (2009 £30665) and for the
Company of £10721 (2009 £944)

Foreign currency risk

The Group 1s exposed to foreign to
currency rate nsk as a result of trade
payables which are settled 1n Euros
and Urnnted States Dollars (USD) Durning
the year the Group and Company did

The currency risk disclosures <t 31 July 2009 are as follows

Accounts payable

£53,383

Euro
£15,009

Rock and Lloyds TSB bank accounts
durning the year at year end all of the
funds were held 1n Bank of Scotland
and Northern Rock accounts The nisk of
Bank of Scotland bank failure has
decreased during the year while
Northern Rock was supported by Bniish
Government Guarantee The carrying
ameount of financial assets represents
the maximum credit exposure The
maximum exposure to credit nisk at the
reporting date was

Company 2010 £ Company 2009 £

12 800 -
57364 19156
1072060 24,418

not enter into any arrangements to
hedge this risk as the Duectors did not
consider tha exposure to be significant
given the short term nature of the
balances The Group and Company
will review this policy as appropnate
in the future As at 31 July 2010 if the
Euro had wecakened or strengthened
10% aganst sterhing with all other
variables held constant, the Group’'s net
loss and equity would have decreased
or increased by £1 791 (2009 £4853)

The currency risk disclosures at 31 July
2010 are gs follows

usD Total
- £15009

- £53 383

The book value of hnancial assets and habihties disclosed 15 considered to be equal to fair value
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Liquidity risk

The Group and Company polcy 1s to
achvely maintann a mixture of long-
term and short-term deposits that are
designed to ensure it has sufficient
available funds for operations The total
carrying value of Group and Company
financial habilites 15 disclosed n notes

Within one month 1056626 262045
Within more than one month and less than one year 100000 614 286
More than 1 year and less than iive years 1990634 1007741
More than five years 1966973 1,283,000

20 21 and 22 Further information on
contractual maturities of sigruficant
financial habilites 1s disclosed 1n notes
22 and 28 The Company 1ssues share
capital when external funds are
required The reconciling items
between the contractual maturihes
presented below and that presented 1n

Group 2010 € Group 2009 £

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

notes 20, 21 and 22 are taxes and the
effect of discounting long term
lhabilites to present value The
following table shows the contractucl
matuntes of the Group s and
Company s financial habihbes all of
which are measured at amortsed cost

Company 2010 £ Company 2009 £
87403 58 989

Contractuaql habiihes of £616,622 and £100,000 shown s fulling due within one month and within one vear, respectvely, are not
expected to be paid untl such tme as the Portland project 15 fully funded

24 Share capiltal and redeemable preference shares

Ordinary share capital

At 31 July 2008 and 2009

- Ordinary shares of 10 pence each
Issue 10 pence ordinary shares

At 31 July 2010

- Ordinary shares of 10 pence each

Authorised
Number £
100 000 000 10000 000
100 000 000 10,000,000

Redeemable preference shares of £1 each (classified as habilites)

At 31 July 2008

Creaton and 1ssue of £1 redeemable
preference shcares

At 31 July 2010 and 2009

On the 5 November 2009 the Company
completed a placing of 2 500000 new
ordinary shares of 10p each at 100p
per share to raise £2 5 milhon before
exXpenses

On the 15 September 2009 the
Company 1ssued 919,474 new 10p
ordincry shares in settlement of an
exishng hability of €746 337 These
shares have been disclosed as shares
to be 1ssued at 31 July 2009

Objectives policies and processes for
managmg caputal

The Group s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Groups
chility to continue das a gomg concermn
order to achueve 1ts operahonal objechves
The Group defines capital as being
share capital plus 1esetves The Board
of Directors morntors the level of capital
as compared to the Group s forecast
cash flows and long term commtments
dnd when necessary 1ssues new shares

50000 50000
50,000 50000

Dituhon of existng shareholder value 1s
considered dunng all processes which
may result in an alteration of share
capital 1n 1ssue

Ordinary share capital 1n 1ssue 1s
managed as capuital and the
redeemable preference shares 1n 1ssue
are managed as current hapilihes

The Group 1s not subject to any
externally imposed capital
requirements

25 Merger reserve
Company

The merger reserve arose on the
demerger of the Portiand Gas Group of
companes from Egdon Resources Plc
when the Company 1ssued shares at a
premum 1o ther nominal value on
accquisihon of InfraStrata UK Limited
The reserve 15 not disinbutable

InfraStrata plc

Allotted, called up, cmd fully paid

Number £
70384 727 7038473
3419,474 341947
73804 201 7380420
50000 12500
50000 12 500

Group

The merger reserve represents the
chfference between the nominal vatue
of the shares 1ssued on the demerger
and the combined share capital and
share premmum of InfraStrata UK
Limited at the date of the demerger
The reserve 15 not disinbutable

26 Share based payment
reserve

The reserve for share based payments
15 used to record the value of equuty
settled share based payments awarded
to employees and transfers out of thus
reserve are made upon the exercise or
expirabon of the share awards

The transfer 1n of £125,426 (2009

£138 691) relates to share cptions
granted For further informahon on the
share based payment scheme see
note 7
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27 Cash (used 1n) operahons

Operatng loss for the T,,rr-;acxr frorn co—mmumg operabons
Group

Depreciation

Profit on disposal of plant & equipment

Decrease in trade and other recewvables

(Decrease) 1n trade and other payables

Share ophon expense

Cash (used 1n) disconhinued operahons

Cash (used 1n) continuing and discontinued operations )

2010
L
(397.358)

21070
38624

(83 280)
125 246
(114,017)
(1409 715)

2009
g
(386 396)

21880

367

156 164
(38105)
138 691
(1,068,045)
(1175 444)

The statement of cash flows includes the following amounts which arise from disconfinued activihes

Group

Cash (used 1n) disconhnued operatons

Inveshng activities

Financing activities

Company

Operating loss for the year

(Iricrease)/mDecrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(Decrease) 1n trade and other payables
Share ophon expense

Cash (used my)/from operatons

28 Operating lease commitments

Group

Future mimimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operatng leases as at 31 July are as follows

Amounts due

Within one year

Within 2 to 5 years
After more than 5 years

(1114017
(2.819450)

(233 545)
(1472 948)
152,452
125,246
{1,428 795)

Land and buildings
2010

€

1223 600

6,493,505
10585 000
18 302105

(1,068 045)
(5 209 340)

(189.527)
172,557
(106 345)
138 691
16376

Land and bulildings
2009

£

1.056,933
6023 505
12 278,600
19,359 038

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for office prermises and land which is for the purposes of

gas storage faciity development.

The office premises lease rentals are fixed for 5 years and the escalabon clause 15 inked to market rates agreed between the
landlerd and tenant The lease provides for a break clause at the fifth anmiversary of the lease, exercisable at the Company’s ophon

The rents due under the gas storage development land leases are fixed to the first review date on the 20 October 2011 and the
escalahon clause 1s linked to the Retonl Price Index pubhshed by the Office for Natonal Statshcs The lease provides for a
break clause at the hfteenth anniversary of the lease exercisable at the Company s optton Untl such tme as the Group has
secured funding for the Portland project only munimal cash payments will fall due with the balance of the hability being
seftled by way of interest bearing loans, which are payable once the associated gas storage project 1s fully funded
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29 Tangible capital commitments

2010 2009
€ £

Approved and contracted 1,795 000 2,038,764

The capital commiments largely relate to commtment a of Portland Gas Storage Limited 1n relahon to a 5106 deed of
undertaking and for 2009, capital works to be performed on the Upper Osprey site

30 Related party transachons

InfraStrata UK Limited leases the Group's head office from Toffee Limited, a company of which Andrew Hindle 15 a director and
shareholder A foir market rent pand dunng the perniod was £45,000 (2009 £45000) The balance outstanding at 31 July 2010 was
£ml {2009 Eml)

The Company has related party relationships wath 1its subsidiarnies in the course of normal operabons

InfraStrata ple recovered overhead costs from InfraStrata UK Limited of £170,561 (2009 £179,328) Portland Gas Storage Limuted
of £473 358 (2009 £497690) Islandmagee Storage Liurnted of £92,134 (2009 £96870) and Portland Gas Transportaton Limited of
£230,457 (2009 £242 304)

The balances outstanding at 31 July 2010 which are not secured are provided n the following table

Related party Amounts owed Amounts cwed
by related parties to rolated parties
- £ <
The ultimate parent
InfraStrata ple o ) ) 10777456 100
Subsidiaries
InfraStrata UK Lirnited 21744838 i 6751126
Portland Gas Storage Limited 48354464 22407599
Islandmagee Storage Limited ) - 2697060
Portiand Gas Transportahon Limited o B - 5347152

Portland Gas Limited - -
InfraStrata NV Limited - -

InfraStrata Trading Limited 100 -
Portland Gas ESP SL - 154821

The balances outstanding at 31 July 2009, which are not secured are provided in the following table

Related party Amounts owed Amounts owed
by related parties to related parties
€ €
The ultimate parent
InfraStrata ple ) o o 9352960 100
Subsidiaries V ) i
InfraStrata UK Limited 1% 486 563 7104 539
Porfland Gas Storage Limited 4 397874 16 399,430
Islandmagee Storage Limited 1,978 572
Portland Gas Transportation Limited - » 4 642,596
Portland Gas Limmted - ) -
InfraStrata NV Limited - 12500
InfraStrata Trading Limited - - 160“ -
Portiand Gas ESP § L - - 99759
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31 Judgements in applying accounting policies
and key sources of eshmation uncertainty

Amounts included m the financal
staternents mnvolve the use of
Jludgement and/or eshmabon. These
eshmates ¢nd judgements are based
on management's best knowledge of
the relevant facts and circumstances
having regard to previous
experience but actucl results may
ciffer from the amounts included in
the financial statements. Informahon
cabout such judgements and
eshmchion 1s contained m the
accountng policies and/or the notes
to the hinancial statements, and the
key creqs are sumanarised below

Caprtalisation of
project costs

The assessment of whether costs
mncurred on project exploration and
evaluation should be capitalised or
expensad involves judgement Any
expenditure which 1s considered to
relate to gas storage exploration
research activities or where it is not
probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group are
expensed Management considers
the nature of the costs incurred and
the stage of project development
and concludes whether it 1s
appropriate to capitalise the costs
The key assumphons depend on the
rock mechanical properties of the
halite, the availabibity of a suitable
site for construction of the required
faciihes and the likelihood of
gamning the relevant permssions.

Review of project asset
carrying values

The assessment of capitalised project
costs for any mndicahons of
impanrment involves judgement
When facts or cucumstances suggest
that mmpatrment exists a formal
estmate of recoverable amount 15
performed and an impairment loss
recogrused to the extent that the
carrying amount exceeds
recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of the Intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life 15 £2 414 342
Recoverable amount 15 determined
to be the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value 1 use The
key assumphons are the net mcome
expected to be generated from the
facilihes the cost of construchon and

the date from which the faciities
become operational. Management
assigns values and dates to these
inputs after taking into account
market information. engineenng
design costing and the project
programme A discount rate of 8% is
applied m determimng project net
present values. Salt cavern gas
storage projects are leng term
mvestments and cash flows are
therefore projected over penods
greater than 5§ years. Engineering
design provides for Project Life of 40
vears It 15 assumed thet 100% of a
project's capacity will be sold from
the date that the capacity becomes
operahenal, therefore no cash flow
growth 1s used when performing
cash flow projechons

Share based payments

The estmaton of share based
payment costs requures the selection
of an appropriate valuchon model
and considerahon as to the mnputs
necessary for the valuaton model
chosen. The Group has made
eshmates as to the volahhty of its
own shares the probable hfe of
options granted, and the hme of
exercise of those ophons. The model
used by the Group 1s the Black-
Scholes model The key assumphons
are detaled in note 7

Gomg concern

The preparation of the iinancial
statements requires an assessment
on the valdity of the going concem
assumption. The vahdity of the gomng
concern assumpton 15 dependent on
the caventabihty of adequate
financial rescurces to allow the
Group to contnue In operatonal
existence for the foreseeable future
Should the going concern basis not
be appropnate, adjustments would
have to be made to the assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet of the
Group As with other development
compenies which have no revenue
streams the Group will only be able
to continue its development
prograrnme if it has sufficient
financial 1esources to do so In order
to gaun such resources, the Group
will need to raise additonal funds
either through the 1ssue of shares

InfraStrata plc

and/or project disposals. The
Directors have reviewed the budget,
projected cash flows, considered
commutted expenditure and based
on this review are conhdent that the
Group will have adequate financial
resources to continue 1n exstence for
the foreseeabls future Consequently
the Duectors consider it appropriate
to prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis subject
to the going concern disclosure
made inh nole 2

32 Events aiter balance
sheet date

On the 1 October 2010 eCORP Ol &
Gas UK Limited undertook to fund
the fust cavern well and thereby
acqutred the nght to match the
project expenditure invested to date
by InfraStrata (£22 9m) in return for
50% of the share capital of the
project company, Portland Gas
Lirted

The Department of Enterprnise Trade
& Investment ('DETI"y has carned out
s assessments of the inaneial and
technical aspects of an apphcation
made for a petroleum licence in
Neorthern Ireland and offered in
November 2010 to grant InfraStrata a
50% licence nterest over the area
applied for which is known as
Central Larme - Lough Neagh Basin
The licence covers an areqa of 663
square killemetes and the exishng
Islandmagee gas storage project is
located within the boundary The
Company expects that DETI should
be 1n a positon to 1ssue the licence
i &1 2011 after it has completed the
drating of the terms and conditions
of the hcence taking inte account
the outcome of its consultabon with
other Depariments and agencles.

33 Control of the Group

The largest Group n which the
results of the Company are
consohdated is that headed by
InfraStrata plc I 15 the ultimate
holding company and 15
incorporated 1n Great Britain and
registered n England There 1s no
uliimate contrelling party of
InfraStrata plc
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Letter from the Chairman with
notice of Annual General Meeting
InfraStrata ple (The “Company”)

(Incorperated and registered in England and Wales with registered number 06409712)

Dear Shareholder,

1 Introduction

Notice of the Company's {forthcoming
annual general meehng to be held on
Monday 31 January 2011 (AGM” or
“Annual General Meeting”) appears on
the jollowing pages

As 1n previous years your Board 1s not
recommending the payment of a
dividend

2. Resolutions to be
proposed at the AGM
Ordinary Business

Annual Report and Accounts
(Resolution 1)

A copy of the annual report and
accounts {together with the Directors
and Auditors reports on the annual
report and accounts) for the Company
for the financial year ended 31 July
2010 (the "Accounts”) has been sent to
you with this document Shareholders
will be asked to recerve the Accounts at
the Annual General Meetng

Re-apporntment of Auditors
(Resolution 2)

The Company 15 required at each
genercl meehng at which accounts are
presented to appoint auditors to hold
office until the next such meehng Nexia
Smith & Williamson Audit Limited have
indicated their willingness to continue
in office Accordingly Resoluton 2
proposegs their re-appomtment as
auditors of the Company to hold office
from the conclusion of the Annual
General Meehng untl the conclusion of

the next annual general meetng of the
Company at which Accounts are laid,
and autherises the Directors to
determine their remuneration

Retirement by Directors
(Resolutions 3&4)

Andrew Hindle and Maurice Hazzard
are the Directors retiring by rotation this
yvear and each offers humself for
re-elechon All members of the Board
are required to submit themselves for
re-elechon at least once every three
years Bnef biographical details of each
of the Directors appear on pages 10
and 1} of the Accounts

Special Business
Authority of Directors to Allot Shares
(Resolution 5)

The authonty given to the Directors to
allot further shares in the capital of the
Company requires the prior
authonsation of the shareholders 1n
general meeting under section 551
Compames Act 2006 Upon the passing
of Resoluton 5 pursuant to paragraph
(A) of the Resoluhon, the Directors will
have authonty to allet shares up to a
maximum of £2,460,140 which 1s
approximately one third of the current
1ssued share capiial as at $th
December 2010 being the latest
practcable date before the pubhcation
of this Letter This authonty will expire
immediately following the next annual
general meeting or i earher six
months following the date to which the
Company's next annual report and
accounts are made up

InfraStrata plc

Registered Ofice
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Longndge
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GL6 7@X

13 December 2010

In addhon, in accordance with the
guidance from the Associahon of Bntish
Insurers ("ABI") on the expectabons of
nstitutional mvestors in relation to the
authonty of directors to allot shares
upon the passing of Resolution § the
Drrectors will have authonty (pursuant
to paragraph (B} of the Resolution) to
allet an adcdihonal number of crdinary
shares up to g maximum of £2,460140,
which 1s approxmmnately a further fhurd
of the current issued ordmary share
capital as at ?th December 2010, being
the latest pracheat date before the
publication of this Letter However the
Durectors will only be able to allot those
shares for the purposes of a rnights tssue
in which the new shares are offered to
exishng shareholders i proportion to
then existing shareholdings This
authonty will also expire immediately
followng the next annual general
meetng or If earher six months
following the date to which the
Company s next annual report and
accounts are made up to

As a result, if Resolution 5 15 passed the
Directors could allot shares represenhng
up to two-thards of the current 1ssued
share capital pursuant to a nghts 1ssue

Disapplication of Pre-emphon Rights
(Resolution &)

If the Directors wish to exercise the
authonty under Resolution § and offer
unissued shares (or sell any shares
which the Company may purchase and
elect to hold as treasury shares) for
cash the Companies Act 2006 requires
that unless shareholders have given
specific authority for the waiver of the
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statutery pre-emption rights the new
shares be offered furst to exishng
sharehelders 1n proporhon to their
existing shareheldings In certain
circumstances 1t may be 1in the best
interests of the Company to allot new
shares (or to grant nghts over shares)
for cash without first offering them to
exishng sharehelders in proporhons to
theur holdings

Resolubon 6 would authonse the
Directors to do thus by allowing the
Darectors to allot shares for cash (1) by
way of a nghts 1ssue (subject to certain
exclusions) {u) by way of an open offer
or other offer of securihes (not being a
nghts 1ssue) m favour of exishng
shareholders 1n proporhons to ther
shareholdings (subject to certain
exclusions) and (i) to persons other
than exising shareholders up to an
aggregate normnal value of £738,042
whuch 1s equuvalent to 10 per cent of the
1ssued share capital of the Company on
¢th December 2010, being the latest
prachcable date prior to the publicahon
of this Letter If given, the authonty will
expue on the conclusion of the following
annual general meehng or If earher, six
months following the date to which the
Company's next annual reports and
accounts are made up

For this purpose the ABI
recommendaton for companies on the
LSE maun list 1s 5% although it 1s
generally recogrused that {or smaller
companes and those on AIM this may
be too constnictive The nature of our
business means that projects in whach
we will have an interest will normally
require up-front investment and can
take a long hme to fully develop
Consequently 1 would ask that you
approve a 10% disapplicaton of
pre-empthon rights to provide your
Board with the flexibility to pursue such
opportunuties without incurning the costs
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of a nghts 1ssue or the need to market
part of the investment opporhamity to
third parhes

3. Recommendation

Your Directors constder the Resolutions
to be proposed at the AGM to be in the
best interests of the Company and 1ts
shareholders as a whole Consequently
the Directors recommend shareholders
to vote i favour of the Resolutions as
they mtend to do in respect of theu own
beneticial holdings totalling 15103 461
ordinary shares (representing 2046 per
cent of the Company s 1s5ued share
capital as at the date of this Letter)

A form of proxy is included for use ot
the AGM Forms of proxy should be
completed, signed and returned as
so0n @s possibkle and 1 any event so
as to be received by Capita Registrars
at The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU not less than
48 hours prior to the time appointed
for the holding of the AGM on

31 January 2011

Completon of a proxy form will not
prevent you from attending the AGM 1n
person 1if you SO wish

Yours sincerely,

Ken Ratchff
Non-executive Charman

InfraStrata plc




Notice of annual general meeting

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual
General Meehng of InfraStrata plc (the
‘Company”) will be held at the offices of
Buchanan Commurnicatons Limited, 45
Moorfields London EC2Y ¢AE Umted
Kingdom on Monday 31 January 2011 at
1100 hours for the purpose of passing
the following Resolutons of whuch
Resoluhons 1 to 5 will be proposed as
Ordinary Resolutions and Resoluhon 6
will be proposed as a Special
Resoluten

Ordinary Resolutions:

1 To recewve the report of the
Directors and the audited accounts
of the Company for the year ended
31 July 2010 together with the
report of the Auditors on those
audited accounts

2 That Nexia Smith & Wilhamseon
Audit Limited be and are hereby
reappolnted as auditor of the
Company to held office from the
conclusion of this meetng unhl the
conclusion of the next meeting at
which accounts are laid before the
meeting, at a remuneration to be
determined by the Directors

3 To re-elect Andrew Hindle as
Director who retires pursuant to
article 92 of the Company's arhicles
of association and who, being
eligible, offers humself for
re-elechon

4 To re-elect Maurice Hazzard as
Director who 1etires pursuant to
artcle 92 of the Company's articles
of associahion and who, being
elgible offers himself for
re-elechon.

5 To consider and i thought fit o
pass the following Resoluton as an
ordinary resocluhon
That the Directors be and they are

hereby generally and
uncondihonally qutheorised 1in
accordance with sechon 551
Comparnes Act 2006 (CA 2006) to
exercise all the powers of the
Company to allot shares in the
Company and to grant nghts to
subscrnibe for, or to convert any
security tnto shares in the
Company

(A) up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £2,460,140, and

(B) comprsing equity securnhes {within
the meaning of sechon 560 CA
2006) up to a further aggregate
norminal amount of £2 460140 1n
connection with an offer by way of
a rights 1ssue

&

(1) tc ordinary shareholders in
proporhon {as nearly as may ke
prachcable) te their existing
holdings and

(1) to holders of other equity secunhes
as required by the rights of those
securthies or as the Directors
otherwise consider necessary
and so that Directors may impose
any limits or restrichons and make
any arrangements which they
consider necessary or appropridate
to dedal with treasury shares,
frachonal entflements, record dates
legal, regulatory or practical
problems in, or under the laws of
any terntory or the requirements of
any regulatory bedy or stock
exchange or any other matter
{(ncluding any such problems
aristng by virtue of equity securnihes
being represented by depositary [4)]
recelpts)

The authorihes conferred on the

Directors under paragraphs {A) and
(B) above shall expire at the

InfraStrata ple

conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company
after the passing of this Resoluhon
or 31 January 2012 whichever 1s the
earlier save that the Company may
kefore such expiry make an offer

or agreement which would or rmught
require shares to be atlotted or
nghts to subscnbe for, or to convert
any secunty into shares to be
granted after such expiry and the
Directors may allot shares or grant
nghts to subscribe for or to convert
any security into, shares (as the
case may be) in pursuance of such
an offer or agreement as if the
authonty conferred hereby had not
expired

Special Resolutions:

To consider and 1if thought fit to
pass the following Resolubon as a
special resoluhion

That subject to the passing of
Resolution 5 above the Directors be
and they are hereby empowered
pursuant to section 570 CA 2006 to
allot equity securthes (within the
meatung of sechion 560 CA 2006) for
cash pursuant to the authonty
conferred by Resoluten 5, as if
sechon 561 CA 2006 did not apply
fo any such allotment, provided that
this power shall be hmted

(A) to the allotment of equity securihes

In connechon with an offer of
equity securnties (but 1n the case of
the authonty granted under
paragraph (B) of Resolution &5 by
way of a nght 1ssue only)

to ordinary shareholders in
propertion (as nearly as may be
practicable) to their exising
heldings and

(11} to holders of other equity secunties

39




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

B)

as required by the nights of those
secuntes or as the Durectors
otherwise consider necessary,

and so that the Directors may
impose any iimits or restrichons and
make any arrangements which they
consider necessary or appropriate
to deal with any treasury shares
fractional entitlements, record dates
legal regulatery or prachcal
problems in, or under the laws of,
any terntory or the requirements of
any regulatory body or stock
exchange or any other matter
(ncluding any such problems
ansing by virtue of equuty securities
being represented by depositary
recelpts) and

to the allotment (otherwise than
under paragraph (A) of this
Resotution §) of equity secuntes up
to an aggregate nominal amount of
£738042

Hotes.

1
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A ber is entiled to app one or more praxies to
axarcise all or any of the membar s Hghts to attend. speak
and vote on his/her behall ot the meetlng A proxy naed
not be o member of the Company L! o membes appoints
more than one proxy io atlend the meeling sach proxy
st be appointed o exercise he rights attached to a
ditferent shore or shares held by the member If a
member wishes k> gppolnt more than one proxy and so
1equires addliicnal praxy forms. the member should
contact Copital Registrars on 0871 684 300 i calling
within the United Kingdom or +44 20 B39 3399 if calling
from outside the United Kingdom. Lines are open §30am
- 530pm Mon-Fri Calls lo the helpline from within the
United Elngdam <ost 10 pence per minute {inchuding VAT)
from a BT londline Cther service providers’ ooss may
wery Call o the helpline from ouiside the United Kingdom
will be charged at applicable intemationat rates. Calls
may be recorded and monitored for security and talning
purposes. A form of proxy for use by membe:s at the
Annual Ganeral his notice
To be ellactive the lorm of proxy and the power of
atiorray or other guthorily (i ary) under which it ks
signad or a no.arially cerified copy o such a.thzily
must be recetved by post ar (during norma) bustness
hoyts only) by hand o* the ot} ce of the Company s
nmuum being Capila Regisirars at The Registry 34

ham Road. . Kant BR3 4TU not less than
48 hours. excluding non business doys belore the time of
the holding of the meeting ar any adjournment theieol
Compieﬁun and return of the proxy form does not
P a fram ding and voting at the
meeting Ln parson.
in the case of {oint sharehelders. where more than one of
the [oini holdars purperis ta appolnt o proxy only the
uppointment submitted by ihe mosl senlor holder will be

-]

and shall expire at the conclusion
of the next annual general meetng
of the Company after the passing of
this Resoluton or 31 January 2012
whichever 1s the earler, except that
the Company may before such
expiry make an offer or agreement
which would or mught yequire
equity secunties to be allotted after
such expiry and the Directors may
allot equity securittes 1n pursuance
of such offer or agreement as 1if the
power conferred hereby had not
expured

Dated 13 December 2010
By Order of the Board
Walter Roberts
Secretary

Registered Office
Blackstable House
Lengridge
Sheepscombe

Stroud

GL6 7QX

actapied Senjority is determined by the crder in which
e names of the jolnt shaoeholders appear in e
Company's reégister of members in 1espect of the joint
halding {the {lis sndmed oelig the mest sendor).

To chemge your praxy Instructions simply submit a new
proxy appeintment using he methods sel out above Note
that the cut-of ime for rocalpt af proxy appohumons {soe
abave) also apply in relath

any d praxy L fved after the
relevamt cut-off ime will be disregorded. If you submit
moia than one valid proxy appolntment, the appointment
received last before the latesl Ume for the recalpt of
proxies will take precedsance

In crder to revoke a praxy Instruction you will need to
inform the Compary by sending notice in writing dearly
sating your infention 1o rewake your proxy appointment
lo Company's Reg‘lstrcn: boinu Capita Registrars ot The
Registry 34 Backanh vam. Kent BR3 4TU
lnmocmeolumembel Wh!chuuconmy the
revocation rotice must be executed under its commen
seal of figned o Its behalt by an oificer of tre compary
©rf an aftormey for the company Any power of aiiomney or
any other quihority under which the revocttion pelice ks
sgnec {of o duly certiied copy of such powes o
auihority) must be included with the revosation notice
The revocation nohce must e recetved by the Ci

3755) only those holders of ordinary shares who are
registered on the Company's shaae register at 1800 hours
on 27 January 2011 shol be entilled 1o atlend the above
Annual Generat Mgeting (or in the case of an adjoumed
meeting 18.00 hours on the day which Is two days before
1he adjourned medating) and to vote In respect of the
number of shares registared in thetr names at that tme
Changas o entrias on the share register after 1300 howurs
on 27 Jonuary 2011 shall be dimegoaded In determining
ihe rights of any person 1o Gtiend and/ar vote ot the
Annual General Meeting

1t the Chairman, gs a result of any proxy appointments, is
given discretion ¢ 10 haw e voles the fubject of tose
proxies are omd and e voling right in respact of those
discrettonary proxies. whan added o the interests in the
Company's sacurities already held by the Chalrmon,
result in the Chatrmiaan halding such number of voling
nght's that ha has o nodfiable obligotion undar the
Disclesyre and Transparency Rules. the Chatrmom will
maks the necessary notificat.ons to lhe Company and ihe
Flntncial Services Autharity As  resull any member
holding 3% or mare of the votng rights in the Company
who grants Re Chalinm o dexgelioneny proxy in respect
of some or all ¢of those votng rights and so would
c'narwi.se hgve o notihcadon cbligation under the

Dk and T 1wy Rules. need not make a

no later than 45 hours, exclading norn busingss days.
befora the tme af the hokiing of e meeting or any
adiournment herect If you attempt to revoke your praxy
butther is recefved after the time
spectﬁed tran your proxy gppeointment wil remenn volid
It you htwe apypointad a proxy and altend the mesting in
POTSOn. YOUr Proxy intment wilt ¥ be
terminoted
In accardance wilh the penmission in Regulation 41¢1) of
The Unce theated Securittes Regulatons 2001 {51 2001 No

InfraStrata plc

sapcrate codtication to the Company dnd the Finangial
Services Authority

Coples of the service agreements and letters of
appolntrment between the Company ond its Directors will
ha available lor inspecticn ot the regustered office of the
Company during usual bustness hours on any weekday
(Saturdarys, Sundeys and Benk Holidays excluded) untl
the date of the meeting and also on the date and at the
plece of the meeting from hal! an hour befera the
meating unt the conclustan of the meating




Proxy Form
InfraStrata plc (The “Company”)

Proxy Form for use by shareholders at the Annual General Meetng ("AGM") of InfraSrata plc (the “Company”) to be held ot the offices

(Incorporated and registered n England and
Wales with registered number 06409712)

of Buchanan Communicahons Limited, 456 Moorfields Londen EC2Y 9AE Urnuted Kingdom on Monday 31 Jonuary 2011 at 1100 hours.

Please read the Notice of the AGM and the accompanying notes carefully before completing this Proxy Form.

As o shareholder of the Company you have the nght to attend speak at and vote at the AGM If you cannot, or do not want to
attend the AGM but stll wemnt 1o vote you ¢an appoint someone to aftend the AGM and vote on your behalf. That person 1s known
as a “proxy” You can use this Proxy Form to appoint the Charrman of the AGM or someone else, as your proxy Your proxy does

not need to be a shareholder of the Company

I/We

being a Shareholder/Sharehoclders of InfraStrata ple appoint the Chairman of the AGM or

(an BLOCK CAPITALS please)

(see note 1)} as my/our proxy to attend and on a poll to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf as indicated below at the AGM and
at emy adjournment thereof (see notes 2 3 4 5 and 6 below)

|:] Please tick here if this proxy appointment 1s one of the muliple gppomtments being made *For the appomtment of more than

ohe proxy please see note 3

Please clearly mark the boxes below to instruct your proxy how to vote

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1 To receiwve the Report and Accounts for the year ended

31 July 2010

Against

Vote withheld Discretionary

To re-appoint Nexia Smith & Williamsen Aud Limited as
aucitors at a remunerabon to be determined by the Directors

3 To re-elect Andrew Hindle

4 To re-elect Mcunce Heozzard

5 To grant the directors authonty to allot shares on the basis

set out in the Notce of AGM

SPECIAL RESQLUTION

6 To disapply pre-emphon nghts on the bxasis set out m the

notice of AGM

Against

Vote withheld

Discretionary

Signatures)

Date

Hotes:

1

A proxy need not ba o mamber of the Comparny but must
atiend the meetng to represant you If you wish to appownt as
 proxy o person cther than the Chaurman of the AGM
placse deleta the words the Chauman of the AGM and
userl the name of the other person All alteratons made 1o
tha Praxy Form must be mitalled by the sgnaony If you sgn
e et this Proxy Form with no name inserted in the box
the Charman of the AGM will be deemed 10 ba your proxy
1t ihe prexy 1s being appomnted in relaton © less than your
A voting enhfiemant, pledase enter the number of shares in
relanon o wiuch they are quthonsed 1o et a3 your proxy i
left blonk your praxy will be ceemed 1o be authorsed n
respect of your full voting enttiement {or if tus Proxy Form
has bean ssued n respect of g designaiad accourt for o
sharehaolder the full worng enttlement for that designated
aocounty

To be eflectve this Proxy Form (logether with any powar of
atarney or other authonty (f any) under which d 13 sigred
or g notorially certitied copy o such authority) ot be
recoved by post or {dunng normal bysiness hours only) by
hdrd af the ¢fice of the Company’s Requstrors. Deing Caplta
Regustrars at The Regstry 34 Beckenham Road

number of shares n relagon to wiech they are quthonsed ©
act o5 your proxy Plemse alsc mdicate by hekang the box
provided if the proxy nstruchon i one of multiple msiruchons
bemg given All forms must b wgNed and should be
returned 1 the same envelope
Completen and rawrn of this Praxy Form will not prevent you
fromm atending in person and woung at the AGM should you
subsequently decide o do so
1If yor: wish your proxy to cost afl of your votes For or
Aganst a resoluton you should nsert an X in the
appropriate bax If you wish your praxy o cost only cerkan
Vo For and cerimn votes Agmnst’ nsert he relevont
numper of shares wn the box. In the o
InStruchons, your praxy may vole or abstan from vobng o
he o7 she thnks Gt cn the speafied resctution and ur.ess
instrucied otherwise mxay aiso vote or abstnn from votng as
he o1 she things §§ on arry other busness (ndud ng onh o
mohon 10 mend o resoluton W propdsa o haw 1esoiunen or
0 adjoumn tha AGM) which may properly coms befors the
AGML
The Vol Withheld opton 18 provided 10 gnable you io
mstruct your proxy @ abstin fom votingon a

A Vot 1 not @ voie 1n kaw and wall not

Kant ER3 4TU by no kater tan 1L00 hours on Thursday 27

ba courted wn the calculaton of the proporkon of the voles

(see note 8)

wgnature must be undeT sedl Of signed by a duly quthorssd
representatve stating theu capaaty (eg Dwrector seciatuy)
In the case of jont shareholders, any one shareholder moy
fign tus Proocy Fanm of may vole m porson at the Meatng i
mere than one joint shareholder s present at e AGM other
In person o by praxy that one of them whose name sicrxds
trgtin the register of mebers wn respect of tha thore shatt
alone ba enhiled 10 vole (whether 11 person of by prezy) in
respect of it

To change your proxy mstructons sumply submit a new proxy
appointment usmg the methods st ouwt above Notg that the
cut-cl tmne for receipt of proxy oppeintnents (see abave)
also apply in relaten © oy

proxy appomtment recerved aftar the relevtod cut-off hme
will be doregarded

In orer to revoke o proxy instruchon you will need o inform.
e Company by senching notice nt wiitng clearly stohng
YOI Intenbon o revoke your praxy appolntnent o
Company’s Regnstrors. being Caplia Regustrors at The Requstry
34 Beckemham Road, Beckenham, Kent SR 4TU In the case
ol & mamber which 15 & company the 1evocaion notoe must
ba executed under ik comman seal or signed on is behalf
by dn olfcer of the campdny of an quarney ot the company
Any power of atorney ar any other authonty under whach

Jarwsary 2001 “Far or Apmnst” a resolihan The ‘Thscetonary” Spucn & the tevocation nztoe 18 signed (of o duly cerhitied copy of
3 You e entitled o appoint more than one proxy provided. providad 1 enabls you o give diacrehion to yowr praxy o fuch powar or quthonty) must be included with the
that sach proxy = 1] nghts wa ot oF abskn froen woung of @ particular resolubon as ha noboe The notce must ba recarved by

dferent share or sharey held by you You may not oppount
more than one praxy io exersss nghts atached 1o ony ong
thare To oppoint more than one proxy {an) odd tonee! Proxy
Fonmis) may be by the
helpkne on 0871 664 0300 if callmgg within e United
Kingdom or +44 20 8639 3390 of caling from outsde the
United Kingdom Lines are open 830czn - 530pm Mon-Fn
Calls to the helpine fom within the Unied Kngrom cost 10
pence per munute {ncuding VAT) fom a BT lapdline Crher
sennce providers costs may vary Call le the helplne from
outsida the United Kingdom will be cherged at applicable
nternaional rates Culls may be recorded and memtored for
securty and tamng purposes Ot you My pholocopy this
form Pleasa indicate naxt to the proxy holder s nomes the

ar she 1ninks bt

In aocordance with the permistion 1n Reguknan 4l of the
Uncarbhected Securhes Ragikrhons 1001 (51 200 No 3755
anly thesa holders of erdinary shares who arg regstered on
the Company's share regster ai 1500 hours on 27 January
201 shall be antted o atend the above AGM (or 1500 hours
cn the day which is two days before the day of ary
adjourned meetng) and o vote in respect of the number of
shares regesterad m thelr names at that ime Changes o
enmes on the share egster atter 1800 hours on 27 Ky
2011 shall be diregarded in determunung the nghts of any
person 1o auend and/or vota of tha AGM

Thus Proxy Form must be sighed by the shareholder or his/her
atiorney Whera the sharehaolder ¢ a corporaten. the

un

the Company no later than 48 hours, excluding nonrbusness
days, betore the e of the holding of the meetng ar any
adjournment thereof If you attempt 1o revoke your frexy

but the s atter the tme
spedlied theh Yol praxy cppotriment will remenn valld If
you have appom.ed a proxy and atgnd the meewny un
PersonL. yOul PIoxy appaintment wall automatically be
termnated

I you submut more than one vabd proxy appomtment 1
1espect of the same shore or shares. the appomimeant
recarved lost before the latest tme for the recespt of proxes
wil fake precedence lf the Company & unable o detenmne
which was receivedt kst one of the proxy appointments
respact of that share or sharas shalt be volid
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